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Turnover 65.71% to RMB150,607 million
EES o Z= ANR¥150,607HETT
Gross profit 25 35% to RMB20,342 million
EH o FEARME20,342FB T
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Parent 206.35% to RMB3,595 million
SUNCIE 2 PN LD v e ZARMES595EBIT
Earnings per share 002.44% to RMB1.24
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1.

The delivery units of the Company’s new energy vehicles
achieved non-stop new highs, with market share increased
significantly, and brand influence further enhanced.

The Company further expanded the product lines to perfect
product matrix, with the edge of technology innovation, it
led the new developing trend of the industry.

With the cooperation between the Company and key
accounts further strengthened, the Company’s business
coverage expanded continuously, which further optimized
the Company’s product-mix.

The rapid growth in sales volume has helped the Company
to scale up and improve its profitability, which partially
offset the pressure brought by the inflation of the raw
materials.
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INDUSTRY ANALYSIS AND REVIEW
Automobiles and Batteries Business

In the first half of 2022, the COVID-19 and the Russia-Ukraine
Conflict formed an intertwined effect, which leaded to a complicated
and severe international situation. As a result, the commodity prices
soared, global inflation exceeded consensus expectations, and
the world economic growth had a notable slowdown. In China,
COVID-19 outbreaks appear to be sporadic, which aggravated the
tensions in industry chains and supply chains, and further increase
the uncertainty of the economic operations. Meanwhile, China’s
macro economy came under the pressure of shrinking demand,
supply shock and weakening expectations, which resulted in
the weakened consumer confidence, declined prosperity of real
estate industry, and underperformed investment. China’s economy
has seriously deviated from the normal track, with various macro
economic indicators broke the bottom line. According to the data
released by the National Bureau of Statistics, the domestic GDP in
the first half of 2022 increased by 2.5% year on year, with the year-
on-year increase of only 0.4% in the second quarter.
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Under the circumstance of complex internal and external
environment, the willingness for automobile consumption is
insufficient. Thus, the development of Chinese automobile industry
has been severely compromised. Moreover, the COVID-19
outbreak in Jilin and Shanghai has weakened the traffics in offline
stores, which aggravates the situation. Meanwhile, the shortage
of chips and the rising price of raw materials are fueling the
challenges of the automobile industry. To cope with the difficulties,
the government unveiled a slew of automobile consumption
stimulus policies, stimulating market vitality and promoting
automobile consumption by ways such as cutting automobile
purchase tax by half, cash subsidies and consumer coupons,
while maintaining the objective of “zero-COVID" and effectively
controlling the Pandemic. In May, the automobile market began
to revive and gradually came out of the doldrums, however, the
total sales volume of the first half is still compromised. According
to the data from China Association of Automobile Manufacturers,
the production and sales volume of automobiles in China were
12.117 million units and 12.057 million units in the first half of
2022, representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.7% and 6.6%,
respectively. New energy vehicles were poised for continued
high growth against the industrial pressure, and the production
and sales volume of new energy vehicles were 2.661 million
units and 2.600 million units respectively in the first half of 2022,
increased by approximately 1.2 times year on year, both. With
the continuous improvement of technology level and industrial
system of China’s new energy vehicle industry, the product
competitiveness has been greatly enhanced, which is commonly
sought after by consumers and recognized by the market, and
the achievement of industrial transformation and upgrading has
been further consolidated. Meanwhile, the continuous rise in oil
price also contributed to the consumption trend of new energy
vehicles since the beginning of this year. In the first half of 2022,
the market penetration rate of new energy vehicles reached
21.6%, representing an increment of 8.2 percentage as compared
to 2021. As the penetration rate continued to rise, new energy
vehicles entered the new stage of market-oriented and scale
development.
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The development of new energy vehicles is the only approach
for China to evolve from a participant to the industry leader, is a
strategic initiative to cope with climate change and promote green
development, and is one of the effective way to implement China
public target of “30-60" goals. In January 2022, the Circular on
Financial Subsidy Policies for the Promotion and Application of
New Energy Vehicles in Year 2022 (E#2022F 3raEIR/AEHE
JE FH BA R 4 BRI SR M3 Z0)) and the subsidy plan jointly issued by
the MOF and other three departments began to be implemented,
which continued the steadily decline of subsidies and clarified that
the subsidies will be phase out at the end of 2022, promoting a
more orderly and healthy development of the new energy vehicle
industry. In April 2022, the State Council issued the Opinions
on Further Unleashing the Potential of Consumer Spending and
Promoting the Sustained Recovery of Consumption ({ER#E—
TEBEEENREBEBRERENEZR)), which proposed to
boost the development of green consumption and promote the
construction of charging piles (stations) and other supporting
facilities, therefore accelerate the development of new energy
In May 2022, four ministries, including the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, arranged 2022
sales activities of subsidized new energy vehicles in rural China to
support the consumption of new energy vehicles and guide rural
residents to travel in a green way; in the same month, the Ministry
of Finance issued the Opinions on Financial Support for Carbon
Peaking and Carbon Neutrality (<8B3 fixiE & 1 T
WER)),
emission reduction, pollution reduction, green expansion and
growth to help achieve the “dual-carbon” goal.

vehicles industry.

which maintains the collaborative promotion of carbon

In terms of rechargeable batteries, in the first half of 2022, the
consumer electronics market was affected by multiple factors
such as resurged pandemic, international tensions and high
inflation, which significantly reduced the demand for consumer
electronics products and affected the demand for upstream
batteries. As for the photovoltaic industry, in the first half of 2022,
under the guidance of the “dual carbon” goal and the accelerated
application of clean energy around the world, the global demand

for the installed photovoltaic capacity continued to grow rapidly.
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Handset Components and Assembly Business

In the first half of 2022, the impact of strain supply chain and
logistics constraints on the mobile phone industry was higher
than expected. At the same time, consumer demand was also
suppressed by the economic downturn, and the global smart
phones shipments showed a downward trend. According to the
statistics from IDC, a market research institute, in the first half of
2022, the shipment of global smart phones decreased by 8.8%
year on year to 600 million units, representing a decline for four
consecutive quarters. According to the data released by the China
Academy of Information and Communications Technology, in the
first half of 2022, the shipment of domestic mobile phones reached
136 million units, representing a year-on-year decline of 21.7%,;
in particular, the shipment of 5G smart phones was 109 million
units, representing a year-on-year decline of 14.5%. In terms of
PC, the enthusiasm for PC consumption has receded due to the
economic downturn and the phase out of COVID-19 restrictions,
which leading to a normalized daily life routine without remote work
or remote learning. According to the statistics from IDC, in the first
half of 2022, the shipment of the global PC market declined by
10.2% to 152 million units, and that of the global tablet computers
reached approximately 78.90 million units, a year-on-year decrease
of 1.7%. Household appliances tend to be intelligent, green and
healthy. Smart home devices are rapidly emerging as one of the
high-profile new industries in China. According to the data from
IDC, the shipment of smart home devices in China in the first half of
2022 was 47.78 million units, representing a year-on-year increase
of 1.7%.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

BYD Company Limited (“BYD” or “the Company” together with its
subsidiaries, “the Group”) is principally engaged in automobile
business which mainly includes new energy vehicles, handset
components and assembly business, rechargeable batteries
and photovoltaic business. Meanwhile, with its technological
superiority, the Group actively develops urban rail transportation
and other business segments. In the first half of 2022, the
Group recorded a revenue of approximately RMB150,607
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 65.71%, among
which, the revenue from the automobiles and related products,
and other products amounted to approximately RMB109,267
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 130.31%; the
revenue from the handset components, assembly service and
other products amounted to approximately RMB41,070 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.78%. These business
segments accounted for approximately 72.55% and 27.27% of the
Group’s total revenue, respectively.

Automobiles and Batteries Business

As a pioneer and leader in the new energy vehicle industry,
BYD unswervingly adheres to the development philosophy of
“technology-focused and innovation-oriented”. With long-term
technological innovation, strategic determination and continuous
investment, the Group has taken the lead in the scale and rapid
development of the new energy vehicle industry, realized the
comprehensive development of the Group’s products, continuous
improvement of brand influence and constant expansion of its
leading advantages. According to data from the China Automobile
Association, the Group’s market share of new energy vehicles
reached 24.7% in the first half of 2022, representing an increment
of 7.5 percentage as compared to 2021, leading the domestic
new energy vehicle market, and returning to the No. 1 position
in the global sales of new energy vehicles, and led the rise of
Chinese independent brands.
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In the field of new energy passenger vehicles, relied on the
strong technology accumulation and technical innovation, during
the Period, the Group’s sales volume of new energy vehicles
increased significantly by more than three times year-on-year,
hitting a record high.According to the data from CPCA,
first half of 2022, Group’s models took six of the top ten places
in China’s new energy passenger vehicle sales list, with products
in short supply, orders hitting new highs, market recognition
increasing, and continuous consolidation of industry status.
Meanwhile,
“Dual-Carbon”, the Group has announced the suspension of
fuel-engine vehicle since March this year and focused on the
development of new energy vehicles business, becoming the
world’s first automobile enterprise to suspend the production
of fuel vehicles, continuously contributing to the high-quality
development of the new energy vehicle industry.

in the

in order to actively respond to the national call for

During the Period, as one of the signature product of self-owned
brand’s high-end process, the Group’s flagship model,
has continued to be popular since its launch and has been widely
recognized and well received by the market. In order to meet
customers’ diversified needs in different scenarios, the “Han”
series continued to iterate and released several vehicle models to
provide consumers with more diversified and high-quality choices,
including “Han EV” with a endurance of over 700 kilometers,
DM-i" with a pure electric endurance of over 200 kilometers and
“Han DM-p” with 3.7 seconds 0-100km/h acceleration ability,
driving the sales of “Han” series of models to record highs, and
further promoting its average price upward, continue to accelerate
brand’s high-end process.

uHann’

“Han

The improvement of the brand is inseparable from the support
of core technology. BYD insists on developing Battery Electric
vehicles and Plug-in Hybrid Electric vehicles technology at the
same time, to promote the comprehensive development of the
new energy vehicle industry.
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In the field of battery electric vehicle, the Group strived to develop
a new battery electric platform “e-Platform 3.0” and combining
intelligence, efficiency, safety and esthetics four advantages
into the products. Marketed models which designed based on
“e-Platform 3.0”, were well received by the market. “Dolphin” the
first model equipped with “e-Platform 3.0” continued to sell well
since its launch last year.The A-class SUV “Yuan plus” has also
seen rapid sales growth since its launch in February this year.In
addition, the battery electric coupe “BYD-Seal”, another important
model of “e-Platform 3.0" , has gained high market attention
at the unlisted stage and received over 20,000 orders on the
day of pre-sale in May. With the start of the pre-order of “BYD-
Seal”, the Group unveiled the “CTB” (Cell to Body) technology
that allows a higher integration level of the “blade battery” and
the vehicle body. The cell-to-body integrated design makes the
vehicle’s torsional rigidity exceed 40,000 N-m/° and contributes
to upgrading the safety standard for the whole vehicle further,
so that the upper limit for the fuel-engined vehicles becomes the
lower limit of the electric vehicles.

In the field of Plug-in Hybrid Electric vehicles, BYD’s “DM-i Super
Hybrid” products, known as “fuel vehicle subverter”, which have
similar price tags to the fuel vehicles at the same class. Featured
by ultra-low fuel consumption, quiet, smooth and excellent power,
these DM-i models have contributed to the sales volume growth
of the Group’s Plug-in Hybrid Electric vehicles, started a trend
in the industry development. According to the data provided by
CPCA, these DM-i models represented more than 50% of the
market share in the fields of Plug-in Hybrid Electric vehicles in
the first half of 2022. During the Period, in addition to the ongoing
hot sales of the “DM-i Super Hybrid “models launched before,
namely “Qin PLUS DM-i”, “Song PLUS DM-i", “Tang DM-i" and
“Song Pro DM-i", the Group launched “Song MAX DM-i", “BYD
Destroyer 05" and “Han DM-i", further improving the matrix of
“DM-i Super Hybrid” products and providing more options to
consumers. In addition, the Group launched the “DM-p Hybrid”
technology to further solve the contradiction between performance
and efficiency. During the Period, the official launch of “Han DM-
p” and the pre-sale of “Tang DM-p” commenced, which facilitated
the comprehensive development of the Group’s Plug-in Hybrid
vehicle models.
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With the empowerment of the battery electric and plug-in hybrid
power technology, the Group intended to further strengthening the
brand construction, in May, the brand new “DENZA” was officially
launched, targeting the user group which positioned as luxury and
exquisite, with products covering MPVs, SUVs, sedans and urban
sports cars, striving to meet the diversified needs of consumers
in the new era. “DENZA D9", as the first model under the new
“DENZA” brand, has also officially launched pre-sale, and the pre-
sale price range is RMB335,000 to RMB460,000, which helps the
Group to expand the product price range and is another practice
of the Group’s brand upward.

In terms of overseas markets, the Group successfully delivered
the “Tang EV” model to Norway at the end of last year, making a
significant step forward in the overseas market. In February this
year, the “BYD-ATTO 3" model launched for pre-sale in Australia
and gained wide attention. In addition, after entering the market
of Colombia, Uruguay, Bahamas, Dominican Republic and Costa
Rica, the “Han EV” model was officially launched in Brazil during
the Period, further expanding the Group’s passenger vehicle
business abroad. The Group also made significant progress to
launch its plug-in hybrid vehicles in the overseas market during
the Period. “Qin PLUS DM-i" and “Song PLUS DM-i" won their first
bulk order exporting to Colombia. Relying on the comprehensive
strength of “leading technology, quality and market”, the
expansion of the Group’s new energy passenger vehicle business
has accelerated.

In the first half of 2022, to meet the increasing market demand,
the Group continued to optimize the layout of all aspects of new
energy vehicles production and actively increase the production
capacity. Although the delivery speed has been improved
continuously, the backlogs still hit record highs and the delivery
pressure remains. During the period, due to the short-term supply
and demand mismatching, the price of raw materials fluctuates at
a high level, which brings great pressure on the industry chain. To
cope with the impact of increasing price, the Group made price
adjustments to certain models in January and March this year
respectively, which will help alleviate the cost pressure caused by
the price increase.
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In the field of electric buses, leveraging on its strong technical
strength, superior product quality and innovative operation model,
the Group works with global partners to continuously improve
the quality of urban public transportation services and continue
to lead the transformation of the new energy bus industry.
During the Period, the Group developed the passenger and
public transportation market in Hefei, Jinan and Fuzhou helping
China’s new energy passenger vehicle industry to move steadily
forward. Meanwhile, the electric buses business also maintained
a rapid growth in the overseas market. The Group put over 1,000
BYD electric buses into operation in the UK and Colombia, and
officially entered Indonesia, Mauritius and other countries to
provide new options for green travel.

In the field of urban rail transportation, the Group launched
the medium-capacity “SkyRail” and low-capacity “SkyShuttle”
with proprietary intellectual property rights, providing effective
solutions to traffic jams in cities all over the world. For “SkyRail”
project, following the car body of Bahia SkyRail rolling off the
production line last year, in March this year, the car body of
“SkyRail” for Sdo Paulo, Brazil officially rolled off as well, bringing
a more efficient and intelligent urban transportation experience
for Brazil. For “SkyShuttle” project, the two major projects
in Dawangshan, Hunan and Pingshan, Shenzhen also made
significant breakthroughs.
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Under the guidance of the market-oriented strategy, the Group
made progress in external cooperation, industrial investment and
capital operation. In terms of external cooperation, the Group has
co-operated with NVIDIA, the world’s leading artificial intelligence
computing manufacturer, in intelligent driving technology to be
strong alliance and complementary advantages, promoting the
development of the intellectualization and informatization of the
new energy vehicle industry. The Group announced the signing
of a memorandum of understanding on strategic cooperation with
UzAuto, a state-owned automobile group in Uzbekistan, to explore
the development and promotion of new energy vehicles. The
Group also signed a global strategic cooperation agreement with
Shell to jointly promote energy transformation. Both parties will
start cooperation in China and Europe first and plan to expand this
cooperation to the whole world. In terms of industrial investment,
as an effective link between the upstream and downstream of
the industry and the Group, the empowerment from the industrial
investment has shown. During the Period, the Group further
deepened its efforts in the fields of electrification, intelligence of
new energy vehicles, based on its own business and its profound
understanding of the whole industrial chain and technological
accumulation, to help the Group implement its strategic plan,
ensure the stability and safety of key parts of the supply chain,
enable each other with industrial chain partners, accelerate the
building of industrial ecology and achieve win-win cooperation.
In terms of capital operation, the listing of BYD Semiconductor
processes steadily and has already submitted to the CSRC (China
Securities Regulatory Commission) for registration, which is an
important milestone in the Group’s market-oriented strategic
initiatives.

In terms of rechargeable batteries, the Group continued to
carry out technology research and development, maintained its
leading position in domestic technology and continued to expand
its business steadily. In respect of the photovoltaic business,
under the guidance of the “dual carbon” goal, the Group steadily
operated its business and actively deployed new technologies to
establish its comprehensive competitive advantages and prepare
for the rapid development of the industry.
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Handset Components and Assembly Business

As a global leader in terms of smart phones and other smart
terminals, the Group provides world-renowned customers with
new materials development, product design, research and
development, manufacturing of parts and components, and
complete machine, supply chain management, logistics and
after-sales and other one-stop services. With a wide range of
business, the Group engage in diversified market segments, such
as smart phones, smart wearables, computers, Internet of Things,
smart homes, game hardware, robots, drones, communication
equipment, electronic atomizers, new energy vehicles (automotive
intelligent systems), medical and health equipment, etc. Relying
on the industry-leading R&D and manufacturing strength,
accumulated advantages in rapid scale production, abundant
customer resources and diversified product portfolio, the Group'’s
business continued to develop steadily.

In the first half of 2022, the Group was actively adjusting its
business strategy, continued its diversified market layout while
striving to develop new channels for its business and inject
new growth momentum into the Group’s business. Despite
the decline in industry prosperity in the smart phone and PC
segments and the weakened demand in the high-end market of
major Android customers, the Group still maintained a leading
share in the overall shipment of core products for existing
customers. Furthermore, the Group was actively developing new
customers, especially the major overseas customers. The Group
has made breakthroughs in the layout of assembly and structural
components, further increasing the penetration rate, expanding
the business scale, and driving market share up. In terms of the
new-type intelligent products, based on the deep R&D, design
and intellectual manufacturing capabilities, leveraging the Group’s
advantages in vertical integration of intelligent products and the
active expansion of the product fields, the Group continuously
provided customers with the most cost-effective and high-quality
intelligent products, and drove the sustainable and rapid growth
of its business. At the same time, benefiting from the prosperity
of the new energy vehicle industry, the shipment volume of
productions in new energy vehicles (automotive intelligent
systems) segment increased, which became an emerging growth
driver of the Group.
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PROSPECT AND STRATEGY

Looking forward to the second half of 2022, as the world economy
is under stagflation risk, major economies tend to adapt tighter
fiscal and monetary policy, and global economic growth will
be slow down. The domestic economic recovery process will
also be challenged by the COVID-19, geopolitics and other
unstable factors, but China economy still present the unchanged
character of great resilience, vitality and long-term growth. With
the efficient coordination of pandemic prevention and control,
the strengthened keynote of keeping steady growth, and solid
implementation of a package of pro-growth policies and the
‘14th Five-Year Plan’, China’s macro economy is expected to
stabilize and rebound. New energy vehicle industry is the the
prevailing trend of China’s automobile industrial development,
and is the new engine to drive the domestic demand. In July,
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology and other
relevant departments publicly solicited opinions on the Decision
on Revising the Measures for the Parallel Administration of the
Average Fuel Consumption and New Energy Vehicle Credits (Draft
Amendment), which further optimised the dual-credit system and
was of great significance to stabilise the industry development
and strengthen the confidence in the development of new energy.
In August, the executive meeting of the State Council decided
to extend the policy of the exemption of purchase tax for new
energy vehicles to the end of next year, further promoting the
consumption of new energy vehicles. In the second half, supply
chain will restore stability, efforts towards the supply and demand
is expected to break through the new energy vehicle sales again.

BEEERWR DT

IS

RE-Z-_FTHF  #REOHFRRAR A
TERERBEBAKE  2REMERZS -
NEERETHEZ RS  wEBUAETRER
ERHE  BEREZEENR - BEKR - REALT
MERFHSBNE - EEMRBRENZE 18
BEMNTERZEBAMBL  —BFEREARIT+
MARE I NEEZRE  PREELEEELRE
Tt MBERAUERTEEXRERNAZ B  HR
NEERAFTHSIE - £A - TEEFHEEM
PCEANER<KAELEFORBEREEIE
RAEED LATERIE > RTE (BRERR))
AHEARBKER  E—SRIETERDHE
URETEER BEERFERELIFEEZE
% - N\A BBEEBERRTHREBHERTE
BEVBRBERERFE - £ S RENERA
EHE o THF  HBEHEERERE HERA
BNEERPIERTEHBHREK -

13



14

BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERNWR DT

Automobiles and Batteries Business

In the backdrop of profound changes in the global automobile
industry, the Group will continue to adhere to its development
strategy, strengthen the independency and controllability of its
core technologies, and continue to launch more competitive
products. The Group will expand production capacity of new
energy vehicles and core components, thereby improve delivery
capacity to actively meet market demand. The Group will
strengthen its market sensitivity, focus on consumer demand,
continuously improve service quality, upgrade brand image,
maintain its leading position in the new energy vehicle industry,
and help Chinese self-owned brands lead the global new energy
vehicle wave.
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In the field of new energy passenger vehicles, the Group
will continue to deepen the research and development of
core technologies for new energy vehicles, adhere to mutual
development of Battery Electric and Plug-in Hybrid electric
technology, and fully cover the market segment. In July, the
sales volume of the Group’s Battery Electric and Plug-in Hybrid
models both increased rapidly, with a market share of nearly 29%.
Sales volume skyrocketed with all series product and of different
technical features widely recognized by the market. In terms of
new models, the Group’s new battery electric coupe ‘BYD-Seal’
was officially launched and attracted extensive attention from the
market. During the pre-sale period, the Group received substantial
orders, which is the symbol of product power and trust in BYD
brand. In addition, the Group continue to fulfil product matrix to
meet diversified consumer’'s need, with 'DENZA D9 and ‘Tang
DM-p’ officially launched in August. In terms of product function
iteration, since the launch of the “Han” series, a total of 17 OTA
upgrades have been launched. On the second anniversary of the
launch of the “Han” series, the OTA will push six major upgraded
functions, namely “dTCS Distributed Gravity Control System”,
“HWA Expressway Driving Assistance Function”,
Coaching Model”, “NVH Active Voice”, “Full-scenario Intelligent
Voice” and “Intelligent Start-Stop”. The continuous OTA upgrades
will enable consumers to experience frequent updates, and enable
the Group'’s product competitiveness to keep pace with the times.
In terms of intelligence,Under the cooperation with NVIDIA, the
Group expects to equip some of its new energy vehicles with the
NVIDIA “DRIVE Hyperion” platform from 2023 onwards to enable
the intelligent driving and intelligent parking. In terms of channel
management, the Group will continue to promote brand building,
expand sales network in an orderly manner, optimize after-sales
service experience, and enhance brand influence in all aspects.

“DiTrainer
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In terms of overseas marketing, the Group has joined hands with a
number of global excellent dealer partners to enter markets such
as the Netherlands, Sweden, Germany, Thailand and Costa Rica
under win-win cooperation. And it will provide local consumers
with high-quality new energy vehicle products and services. In
August, BYD’s branch in Japan held a brand conference in Tokyo
to announce its official entry into the Japanese passenger vehicle
market, and unveiled three models, namely BYD-ATTO 3, BYD-
SEAL and BYD-DOLPHIN, which will be launched in 2023 as
plan. In addition, the Group announced its participation in the
Paris Motor Show, one of the world’s top five motor shows, in
October this year. The Group will showcase its latest new energy
passenger vehicles product range, demonstrating commitments to
sustainability on global automobile industry.

In the field of battery electric buses, the Group will continue to
empower low-carbon upgrades in global public transportation
systems, advocate green mobility, and provide zero-emission
public transportation solutions to many countries and regions with
efficient and stable innovative technologies and high-quality new
energy public transportation products. The Group will continue to
work hard to promote the further establishment of the global green
mobility system and the rapid and healthy development of a low-
carbon society.

In the field of urban rail transit, the Group stands at the forefront
of world rail transit innovation, gives full play to the advantages of
integrated innovation, extends the electric vehicle industry chain
to the field of rail transit, and focuses on promoting low-carbon
and environmentally friendly urban rail transit products, namely
“SkyRail” and “SkyShuttle”, to help cities build low-carbon
transportation and achieve sustainable development of green and
intelligent transportation.

In terms of market-oriented layout, the Group will proceed to
cultivate more market-competitive businesses to achieve market-
oriented operation, so as to further unleash the development
potential of each business segment and enhance the overall value
of the Group. In addition, the Group will continue to make strategic
investments in core areas at the upstream and downstream of
the industry chain based on its own business characteristics, and
enable each other with partners at upstream and downstream
of the industry chain to push forward the Group’s marketization
process.

In terms of rechargeable batteries, the Group will actively
promote the application of the innovative technologies, expand
its customer base and continuous expand business scope. In
terms of photovoltaics business, the Group will actively grasp
the development trend of the industry, concentrate resources,
focus on technology research and development, promote product
transformation and upgrading, and meet the explosive growth
opportunities of the industry with high-quality products.
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Handset Components and Assembly Business

The Group will keep abreast of market development and actively
increase investment in research and development; strengthen
core competitiveness through technological advantages; adhering
to the strategy of developing major customers, strengthening
core business cooperation, stimulating the potential of major
customers and expanding market share. The Group will seize
market opportunities to maintain long-term sustainable development,
expand product range and empower the Group’s long-term business

development.

The continuous cross-industry integration of 5G and artificial
intelligence technology will stimulate leap forward development
of the market. The Group will continue to increase its investment
in various fields and develop more high-quality new intelligent
products to fully present the Group’s technological strength.
It is expected that smart home devices, drones and electronic
atomization products will drive ongoing high growth of new
intelligent products and have a broad development prospect.
As the automotive industry is moving towards electrification and
intelligence, relying on the rapid development of the automobiles
business, the Group increased investment in research and
development and technological innovation, and comprehensively
deployed new categories such as smart cockpit, intelligent driving,
intelligent networking, domain controller and on-board acoustic
system, which brought strong new momentum for business
development.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Profit attributable to Owners of the Parent
Company

During the Period, revenue increased by 65.71% as compared
to that of the first half of 2021, mainly attributable to the rapid
growth in the new energy vehicle business. The profit attributable
to shareholders of the Parent Company increased by 206.35% as
compared to the same period of previous year, mainly attributable
to the increase in the sales volume of new energy vehicles.

Segmental Information

The following set out comparisons of the Group’s revenue by
product categories for the six months ended 30 June 2022 and
2021:

27% 48%
Mobile handset Mobile handset
components, components,

assembly and
other products
FHeEpH - R
HipEm

2022H1

73%
Automobiles and
related products,
and other products
B B RRER
MEABEmR

T _FL¥F
2022H1

assembly and
other products
FHeApM - R
HithE m

Bt %55 [o] 8
ERERTOFES ARGERR

HRN  2EEBR - - —FLE¥FEA6571% £
DEMAERTEERLIATR - FRRES AEN
B EFRE EF206.35% 0 TER BRI
BB REATE

7 RER

UWTAAEEREEZE S -_—FR_T-—F~A
=+ BIEXNEARERER DTS ERELLE

2021H1

52%
Automobiles and
related products,

and other products
B AEERER
Ko ELh 2 o

SR -FE¥F
2021H1



Interim Report 2022
SR CEREERE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross Profit and Margin

The Group's gross profit for the Period increased by approximately
75.35% to approximately RMB20,342 million. The gross profit
margin increased from approximately 12.76% for the first half of
2021 to approximately 13.51% for the Period. The increased in
gross profit margin was mainly due to the increase in the new
energy vehicle business.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Period, the Group recorded an operating cash inflow
of approximately RMB43,185 million, as compared to an operating
cash inflow of approximately RMB9,677 million in the first half
of last year. The increase in cash inflow of the Group during the
Period was mainly attributable to the increase in cash received
from sales of goods and provision of services. Total borrowings
as at 30 June 2022, including all bank loans, bonds payable and
other secured loans, were approximately RMB29,634 million, as
compared to approximately RMB33,729 million as at 31 December
2021. The maturity profile of bank loans, bonds payable and
other secured loans spread over a period of five years, with
approximately RMB19,113 million repayable within one year,
approximately RMB10,521 million repayable within the second to
fifth years. The Group holds sufficient cash to meet daily liquidity
management and capital expenditure requirements, and controls
internal operating cash flows.

For the six months ended 30 June 2022, the turnover days
of receivables (including trade receivables, contract assets,
financing receivables) were approximately 68 days as compared
to approximately 118 days for the corresponding period in 2021.
The change was mainly due to that the increase in the average
balance of trade receivables was less than the increase in
operating revenue for the same period. The inventory turnover
days were approximately 71 days for the six months ended
30 June 2022 as compared to approximately 82 days for the
corresponding period in 2021, which was mainly due to that the
increase in selling cost was more than the increase in average
inventory for the same period.
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Capital Structure

The Group’s financial division is responsible for the Group's
financial risk management which operates according to policies
implemented and approved by senior management. As at 30
June 2022, borrowings were mainly denominated in RMB, while
its cash and cash equivalents were mainly held in RMB and USD.
The Group maintained an appropriate mix of equity and debt to
ensure an effective capital structure during the Period. As at 30
June 2022, the Group’s outstanding borrowings comprised RMB
loans and foreign currency loans, of which approximately 74% (31
December 2021 : 58%) bore fixed interest rates and the rest bore
floating interest rates.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the
gearing ratio as low as possible. Net debt includes debt capital
less monetary funds. Equity represents equity attributable to
owners of the parent. Therefore, the Group's gearing ratio as
at 30 June 2022 and 31 December 2021 was -14% and -15%
respectively.

As at 30 June 2022, The Group's land and buildings with a
net book value of RMB179,480 thousand (31 December 2021:
RMB182,646 thousand) were pledged as collateral for long-
term borrowings of RMB94,474 thousand (31 December 2021:
RMB111,441 thousand),
due within one year of RMB6,778 thousand (31 December
2021: RMB21,304 thousand). In addition, as at 30 June 2022, a
pledged bank deposit of RMB3,102,116 thousand (31 December
2021: RMB528,118 thousand) and a restricted bank deposit
of RMB124,545 thousand (31 December 2021: RMB109,109
thousand) were pledged for bank acceptance bills, guarantee
deposits and others.

which included long-term borrowings

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk

Most of the Group’s income and expenditure are settled in RMB
and US dollar. During the Period, the Group did not experience
any significant difficulties in or impacts on its operations or
liquidity due to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. The
Directors believe that the Group has sufficient foreign exchange
to meet its own foreign exchange requirements and will adopt
practical measures to prevent exposure to exchange rate risk.
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Employment, Training and Development

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had approximately 418.7
thousand employees. During the Period, total staff cost
accounted for approximately 15.37% of the Group’s turnover.
Employees’ remuneration was determined based on performance,
qualifications and prevailing industry practices, with compensation
policies being reviewed on a regular basis. Bonuses were also
awarded to employees, based on their annual performance
valuation. Incentives were offered to encourage personal
motivation.

The Group also adopted equity incentive plans to provide
incentives to attract and retain employees. The adoption of a
share option scheme (the “Subsidiary Share Option Scheme”) of
BYD Semiconductor Company Limited (thasiEERRMHER A
al) (formerly known as BYD Semiconductor Co., Ltd, thapi&
BAMRRAA) (“BYD Semiconductor”) was approved pursuant to a
resolution of the shareholders of the Company passed on 16 June
2021. For further details of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme,
please refer to the paragraph headed “Supplementary Information
-Subsidiary Share Option Scheme” in this report.

Furthermore, the adoption of the 2022 Employee Share Ownership
Plan (the “Employee Share Ownership Plan”) was approved
pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 27 May 2022. For further details of the Employee
Share Ownership Plan, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Supplementary Information — Employee Share Ownership Plan” in
this report.

PROPOSED SPIN-OFF OF BYD SEMICONDUCTOR

References are made to the announcements of the Company
dated 30 December 2020, 16 June 2021, 30 June 2021, 25
October 2021 and 27 January 2022, as well as the circular of the
Company dated 31 May 2021, in relation to, among others, the
proposed spin-off and separate listing of a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, BYD Semiconductor, hereinafter
referred to as “BYD Semiconductor”), on the ChiNext Board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (the “SZSE").
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The Company held the 4th Meeting of the Seventh Session of the
Board, the 11th Meeting of the Seventh Session of the Board and
the First Extraordinary General Meeting of 2021 on 30 December
2020, 10 May 2021, and 16 June 2021, respectively, during which
the Company considered and approved the matters related to the
Spin-off (hereinafter referred to as the “Spin-off”’). The Company
subsequently submitted the application materials for the Spin-
off to the SZSE and filed the application for the Spin-off and the
waiver of the Company from providing assured entitlement to the
Company’s shareholders to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

On 29 June 2021, the Company received the Notice Regarding
Acceptance of the Application Documents for the Initial Public
Offering and Listing of Shares of BYD Semiconductor Company
Limited on the ChiNext Board issued by SZSE (Shen Zheng Shang
Shen [2021] No. 283) (R IRtk i ¥ EEERH AR AR H R AR
BITRREIW A AIZENR E T BRFE X RRA) ORFE L3 [2021]2835%) .
In accordance with relevant regulations, the SZSE checked the
application report and related application documents submitted
by BYD Semiconductor for the initial public offering and listing of
shares on the ChiNext Board, and determined that the documents
are complete and acceptable.

On 22 October 2021, the Company received the approval in
relation to the Spin-off and the waiver for assured entitlement from
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, confirming that the Company may
conduct the Spin-off pursuant to Practice Note 15 of the Listing
Rules and can be waived from providing assured entitlement of
BYD Semiconductor’s shares to its existing shareholders.

According to the Announcement of the Results of the 5th
Consideration Meeting of the GEM Listing Committee in 2022
announced by the SZSE on 27 January 2022, the results of
the review of the Listing Committee of SZSE in relation to the
application of BYD Semiconductor to separately list on the
ChiNext Board of SZSE are that BYD Semiconductor Company
Limited (initial public offering) has met the issue conditions, the
listing conditions and the information disclosure requirements (tt
THFBEROBERAR (FE) FaBITHRM - EWIEERMERHRE

Z3R).
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As it is expected that the Company’s equity interests in BYD
Semiconductor is expected to decrease upon the completion of
Spin-off, the Spin-off would constitute a deemed disposal of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. It is currently
expected that the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect
of the Spin-off will be less than 5%. As such, the Spin-off does not
constitute a notifiable transaction for the Company under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules and is not subject to the announcement,
reporting and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules.

As of the date of this interim report, there are uncertainties for
the Spin off, as it is subject to the approval of the CSRC for the
issuance and registration procedures. The Company will comply
with the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules and
make further announcement when appropriate.

SHARE CAPITAL

As of 30 June 2022, the share capital of the Company is as
follows:
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Number of shares Approximate

in issue percentage (%)

BRITROBE KA E 2 (%)

A Shares AR% 1,813,142,855 62.28
H Shares HAR 1,098,000,000 37.72
Total B 2,911,142,855 100.00

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the reporting period, there was no significant investment

held, material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Please refer to note 15 to the financial statements for details of
capital commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Please refer to note 14 to the financial statements for details of
contingent liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Please refer to note 18 to the financial statements for details of
events after the reporting period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE (THE “CODE”)

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed
to maintaining and ensuring high standards of corporate
governance practises.

The Board emphasises on maintaining a quality Board with a
balance of expertise, transparency and accountability in order
to enhance shareholders’ value. In the opinion of the Board, the
Company has complied with the applicable code provisions as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Period, except
for the following deviation:

Code Provision C.2.1

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

Mr. Wang Chuan-fu is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. The Board considers that this structure will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management. The Board of the Company comprises
experienced and high caliber individuals and meets regularly to
discuss issues affecting operations of the Group. The balance
of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the Board.
The Board believes that this structure is conducive to strong and
consistent leadership, enabling the Group to make and implement
decisions promptly and efficiently. The Board has full confidence
in Mr. Wang and believes that his appointment to the posts of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is beneficial to the business
development of the Company.

Code Provision C.1.6

Code provision C.1.6 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and non-executive directors should attend general
meetings. Some of the independent non-executive Directors
and non-executive Directors did not attend the extraordinary
general meeting held on 27 May 2022 and the annual general
meeting held on 8 June 2022 due to inconvenience brought by
the COVID-19 or important business engagements at the relevant
time.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED COMPANIES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of the Directors has
confirmed compliance with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the Period.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

There is no information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules during the reporting period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’ S
LISTED SECURITIES

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
22 April 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 5 May 2022
in relation to, among other things, the proposed repurchase of
A shares of the Company and the proposed authorization to the
Board and its authorized persons to handle all matters relating to
the repurchase of A shares of the Company (the “Repurchase”).

The Company convened the 21st Meeting of the Seventh Session
of the Board and the 9th Meeting of the seventh session of
the Supervisory Committee on 22 April 2022, the 2022 first
extraordinary general meeting on 27 May 2022, and the 25th
Meeting of the Seventh Session of the Board on 8 June 2022, at
which the relevant resolutions in relation to the Repurchase were
considered and approved, pursuant to which the Company was
approved to use its own funds to repurchase the A Shares issued
by the Company and listed on the SZSE through the securities
account designated for share repurchase by way of centralised
bidding or other methods as approved by the CSRC. The total
amount of funds for the repurchase shall not exceed RMB1.85
billion (inclusive), and shall not be less than RMB1.8 billion
(inclusive). The repurchase price shall not exceed RMB400 per
share. The term of the repurchase shall not exceed 12 months
from the date on which the repurchase plan is considered
and approved at the general meeting of the Company. All the
repurchased shares will be used for the implementation of the
Employee Share Ownership Plan.
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The Company announced the next day disclosure returns in relation
to the progress of the repurchase on 1 June 2022, 2 June 2022, 10
June 2022 and 13 June 2022, respectively. During the aforesaid
four trading days, the Company repurchased a total of 5,511,024
A Shares, representing 0.189% of the total issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this report. The highest and lowest
trading prices were RMB358.58 per share and RMB293.37 per
share, respectively. The total amount of funds for the repurchase
was RMB1,809,702,398.72 (excluding transaction costs). As of 13
June 2022, the implementation of the repurchase plan has been
completed.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the six months ended 30 June 2022.

THE BOARD’S DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy, which sets out
the approach to the diversity of Board members. The Company
recognises the importance of diversity to corporate governance
and an effective Board. The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out
the approach to achieve Board diversity, so as to ensure that the
Board members possess appropriate skills, experience and diverse
views necessary for the business of the Company. In determining
the Board composition, the Board and Nomination Committee of
the Company consider a range of diversity elements, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All appointments of
the Board will be made based on merit and objective criteria while
taking into full account the interest of the Board’s diversity.

The selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
elements and measurable objectives which will be reviewed
regularly. Such measurable objectives shall include, but be not
limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or terms of service.
The final decision will be made according to the strengths of the
candidate and his/her contribution that would bring to the Board.
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CHANGE OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND CESSATION
OF APPOINTMENT OF INTERNATIONAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the “Consultation Conclusions on Acceptance of
Mainland Accounting and Auditing Standards and Mainland Audit
Firms for Mainland Incorporated Companies Listed in Hong Kong”
issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 10 December 2010
and the related amendments to the Listing Rules, with effect from
15 December 2010, Mainland incorporated issuers listed in Hong
Kong are allowed to prepare their financial statements using
Mainland accounting standards, and the Mainland accounting
firms that have been approved (the’Approved Mainland
Accounting Firms”) by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC and the
China Securities Regulatory Commission are eligible to provide
auditing services to issuers using Mainland auditing standards.
In view of the above and the fact that financial statements of
the Company prepared under the CASBE and those under
the HKFRSs are basically consistent with another, at the 20th
meeting of the seventh session of the Board held on 29 March
2022, the Board has resolved to prepare only one set of financial
statements in accordance with the CASBE for each future financial
reporting period commencing from the financial year of 2022.
Such resolution was approved by way of ordinary resolution at
the annual general meeting held on 8 June 2022. The Company
believes that such adjustment is in compliance with the applicable
laws, regulations, regulatory documents and the Articles of
Association of the Company, and will not have a material impact
on the operating results or financial position of the Company.

The financial statements of the Company have been truly and fairly
reflected in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. According to the resolution, the financial statements
for the Reporting Period were prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC and the relevant regulations (the
“PRC Accounting Standards”).
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On 29 March 2022, the Board also resolved (1) terminate the
appointment of Ernst & Young as the international auditor of the
Company; and (2) appoint Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP), being
the existing domestic auditor of the Company and one of the
Approved Mainland Accounting Firms, as the sole external auditor
of the Company (the “Proposed Cessation of Appointment of the
International Auditor”) for the preparation of financial statements
for the Company under CASBE. The relevant resolutions were
approved by way of ordinary resolutions at the annual general
meeting held on 8 June 2022. Ernst & Young has confirmed that
there are no circumstances relating to the above-mentioned
Cessation of Appointment of the International Auditor that need
to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders. The Board
and the audit committee of the Company confirm that there is no
disagreement between the Company, the audit committee of the
Company and Ernst & Young in relation to the above-mentioned
Cessation of Appointment of the International Auditor. Each of the
Board and the audit committee of the Company further confirmed
that it is not aware of any matters regarding the Proposed
Cessation of Appointment of the International Auditor that need to
be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

A meeting was convened by the Company’s audit committee on
29 August 2022 to review the accounting policies and practices
adopted by the Group and to discuss auditing, internal control,
risk management and financial reporting matters (including
reviewing the financial statements for the six months ended 30
June 2022) before recommending them to the Board for approval.

The audit committee has reviewed the results of the Group for the
six months ended 30 June 2022.
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INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the distribution of interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2022 (for the six
months ended 30 June 2021: Nil).

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS

As at 30 June 2022, the interests and short positions of each of
the Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests which he is taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into
the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange to be notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (for this purpose, the relevant
provisions of the SFO will be interpreted as if they applied to the
supervisors) were as follows:
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A shares of RMB1.00 each BREEARE1.00THAR

Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage of shareholding

shareholding in total

in total issued issued share

A shares (%) capital (%)

Number of HREMAHE T IFREMGDBT

A shares AR BB IR A 48 KA 1Y

Name #®E ABREE BHAEI%) BMYIBEDL(%)

Wang Chuan-fu (Director) TERE(ES) 513,623,850 (L) 28.33% 17.64%
(Note 1)
(Htst1)

Lv Xiang-yang (Director) 2Ak5G (EF) 393,228,922 (L) 21.69% 13.51%
(Note 2)
(Ftst2)

Xia Zuo-quan (Director) BER(EF) 82,635,607 (L) 4.56% 2.84%

(L) - Long Position (L) - 47 &

Notes: Biat -

1. The 513,623,850 A shares did not include the 3,727,700 A 1. 1£5%513,623,850 kAR 2 - TBEETRER
shares held by Mr. Wang in No.1 Assets Management Plan M TEEEN DG 1REETEFEIRE
through E Fund BYD. (93,727, 700 IR ARRBE (5 o

2. Of the 393,228,922 A shares, 239,228,620 A shares were held 2. TE72393,228,922 K Afik 2 # » 239,228,620%
by Mr. Lv in his personal capacity and 154,000,302 A shares ARB EEENEAZHIFE X 154,000,302
were held by Youngy Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. BARERERETEREEERAF ([RIER
(R BB ERARAR) (“Youngy Investment”). Youngy EDEA  mERENHALERERB A
Investment was in turn held by Mr. Lv and his spouse as to FEB89.5% & 10.5% K - AMIREZESH L
89.5% and 10.5% of equity interests, respectively. Mr. Lv was B0 - 2EEWIR BRE%154,000,3028 AR
therefore deemed to be interested in the 154,000,302 A shares B R -

under the SFO.
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H shares of RMB1.00 each

FRARM1.00 THHRKR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

in total
issued share
capital (%)

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in total issued
H shares (%)

Number of HREMAHE T IFREMGDBT
H shares HER S IR A 48 KA 1Y
Name ®E HEREE #MAEI(%) BMAED(%)
Wang Chuan-fu (Director) TERE(ES) 1,000,000 (L) 0.09% 0.03%
Xia Zuo-quan (Director) BErz2(E%) 500,000 (L) 0.05% 0.02%
(Note)
(H15%)
(L) — Long Position (L) - &
Note: Hiaz -

Of the 500,000 H shares, 195,000 H shares were held by Mr. Xia as a
beneficial owner and 305,000 H shares were held by Sign Investments
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. Xia.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, none of the
Directors, supervisors or chief executives of the Company had
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required
to be (a) recorded in the register to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

M500,000HEZH - EXENEZHEBAFND
FH195,0001HE - MABEXE2EHEAMNSIgn
Investments Limited 8lI# & 305,000 % HA% °

BREdEEEN RZE-_FXA=1tH #E
ARAEE  BEFERNESTHRAENRARBLELE
AEEEE (EERBSFRBABRMFEXVE) M
o~ RO RERETEAREIOXB A ()R
BRARAREES LB EIFEI2GEFENE
A S(b)RIE ET AR ERFETESFR SR
ETRAMGRNR B REBB A -
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SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS

As at

30 June 2022, to the knowledge of the Directors of the

Company, the following persons (other than the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions of

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or were required to be
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section

BRARATHAERENRER

MNZEZZFRNA=1+H BRARREZHN - MU
TAL(TBEARGBES EERTERTTERAR)
RARNE RGO REERO P HEEREZS REE K
PIEEXVEBE 2R3N FARARA R REBH AT E
BB EEFELRREEFEIBEHARNRTNFEDN
FafMmEmsons

336 of the SFO:

1. A shares of RMB1.00 each 1+ BREEAR¥1.00THAR
Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage of shareholding
shareholding in total
in total issued issued share
A shares (%) capital (%)
Number of BREMEE T BFREMGDBT
A shares ARBEH RABEN
Name 8B ABREE BHYEDE(%) BYEDE(%)
Youngy Investment (Note) BRI E (H1aE) 154,000,302 (L) 8.49% 5.29%
(L)- Long Position (L) - &

Note:

Youngy Investment is owned by Mr. Lv Xiang-yang, a non-
executive Director of the Company, as to 89.5%. Mr. Lv is
therefore deemed to be interested in the 154,000,302 A shares
held by Youngy Investment under the SFO.

At

MEREHARRFENTESTRRAGEEES
89.5% 1w o At - MIBFFHRMEKH - &
S AR AR B REIR A5 H #9154,000,302 8 A
RpEEER -
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2. H shares of RMB1.00 each

BREEART1.00 THHE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in total issued
H shares (%))

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in total
issued share
capital (%)

Number of HBREMAERT HREMASRT
H shares HER B RABEEH
Name e HEZHE BMOBEI(%) BABIH(%)
Berkshire Hathaway Inc. (Note 1) Berkshire Hathaway Inc. (47 1) 225,000,000 (L) 20.49% 7.73%
Berkshire Hathaway Energy (Note 1) Berkshire Hathaway Energy (#7z£7) 225,000,000 (L) 20.49% 7.73%
Western Capital Group LLC (Note 1) Western Capital Group LLC (#/z£7) 225,000,000 (L) 20.49% 7.73%
BlackRock, Inc. (Note 2) BlackRock, Inc. (#7:22) 54,957,313 (L) 5.01% 1.89%
106,500 (S) 0.01% <0.01%

(L) - Long Position (L) - 27 E

Notes: Kiat

Berkshire Hathaway Inc. and Berkshire Hathaway
Energy Company (formerly known as MidAmerican
Energy Holdings Company) were deemed to be
interested in 225,000,000 H Shares (L) through
225,000,000 H Shares directly held by their indirectly
controlled corporations and wholly-owned corporation,
Western Capital Group LLC, respectively.

The interests of BlackRock, Inc. were held through its
various controlled corporations, and of which 267,500
long positions were cash settled unlisted derivatives,
and 106,500 short positions were cash settled unlisted
derivatives.

The total issued share capital of the Company as

at 30

June 2022 was RMB2,911,142,855, divided

into 1,813,142,855 A shares of RMB1.00 each and
1,098,000,000 H shares of RMB1.00 each, all fully paid up.

i
N — =

Berkshire Hathaway Inc. K Berkshire
Hathaway Energy Company (%
#MidAmerican Energy Holdings
Company) 2 B R AFE B EEZEIEH
Nalke2EFE AR Western Capital
Group LLCFTEEHH/225,000,000
BEHAE - 7225,000,000 % HAR (L) 2 &
B o

BlackRock, Inc. Hy# s /738 38 H =47
NEFEE  HP267 5008 ARE
HEEIE FHOTETA - 106,500 %
RABGREIELMITETA -

——FXNA=Z1+H " ARQARBET

A4 A AR 2 911,142,85570 ' DB
1,813,142, 855 R F R MEEARKE1.007TH
Al 21,098,000,000 ¢ R E{E AR 1.00
TTHIHER - 2HABWER -
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SUBSIDIARY SHARE OPTION SCHEME

References are made to the announcement dated 11 May 2021
and circular (the “Circular”) dated 31 May 2021 of the Company,
in relation to, among others, the proposed adoption of the 2020
Share Option Incentive Scheme of BYD Semiconductor Co.,
Ltd (the “Subsidiary Share Option Scheme”). The adoption of
the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 16 June 2021.

The purpose of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme is to, among
others, further establish and improve the incentive mechanism
of BYD Semiconductor, retain and motivate talents, and allow
all parties to focus on the long-term development of BYD
Semiconductor and jointly promote its sustainable development.

There are 36 participants in the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme,
including directors (excluding independent non-executive
directors), senior management and key personnel (excluding
supervisors) of BYD Semiconductor. The Subsidiary Share
Option Scheme is tailored to be a one-off incentive arrangement
for the aforesaid 36 participants only. None of the 36 incentive
participants of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme is a
connected person at the Company level. For details of the identity
and positions of the aforesaid participants, please refer to the
Circular.

FARRESRETE

ZRMARAREHA T -_—FHERT—HHNRSE
AR _Z_—SnA=+T—BHEX([ZB
B REAR (AR e Z@RMt et g
BIR A R]2020 4 R #E B R AR AT 81 (F%”‘ﬁﬁ’x‘ﬁéﬁﬁ

BEHE ) - ARBBERARBR T —FXA
TRBETHRERRAS DHERRF R BIRE
HAMERT &I -
"ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%#?ﬂ%ﬁ (BB E— IR
ZH R R RSB I - Ko B BB A A
)SZ&E?%%%E@E%&%KE BYEENRHERY

HAR(EEE A RFEERE -

FRRKRERETE G062 EE - BIFLEY
%%é%(TE%?%iéhﬂﬁ%%) CEREERER
BRABR (TREESE) - Tﬂﬁéﬂ}iﬁé%%ﬂﬁ@
F%J:LSG%,A%EEE%UE’J RIE BB L HE ﬂ%
Tﬁﬂgﬁﬁ%pfiﬂﬁ’]%%/%ﬂl%b/,\%TJ$
EEE’]F@ $/\:|: BB fr%éﬁ%%ﬂ’\]%@&ﬁﬁkm :

uﬁ/ Eﬁu/}:
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The number of shares of BYD Semiconductor in respect of which
the share options involved is 33,088,235 (representing 7.353%
of the registered share capital of BYD Semiconductor as at the
date of this report), and the cumulative total number of shares of
BYD Semiconductor involved under the Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme and all other schemes of BYD Semiconductor shall not
exceed 10% of the total share capital of BYD Semiconductor in
issue on 16 June 2021, the date of approval of the Subsidiary
Share Option Scheme by the shareholders of the Company.
As at the date of this report, an aggregate of 33,088,235 share
options, representing all the share options which could be granted
under the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme, were granted to 36
employees of BYD Semiconductor pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme at the exercise
price of RMB4.54 per share (subject to a further adjustment in
accordance with terms and conditions of the Subsidiary Share
Option Scheme). Save for 203,824 share options which had been
lapsed and cancelled as a result of the resignation of an employee
subsequent to the conditional approval of the Subsidiary Share
Option Scheme, no share option was exercised, cancelled and/or
lapsed during the six months ended 30 June 2022. As at 30 June
2022, there was no outstanding share option under the Subsidiary
Share Option Scheme.

The validity period of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme shall
commence from the grant date of the share options and end on
the date on which all the share options granted to the incentive
participants have been exercised or cancelled, which shall not
be longer than ten years. The share options granted under the
Subsidiary Share Option Scheme shall be exercised in three
tranches, and the corresponding vesting periods shall be 24
months, 36 months and 48 months respectively from the grant
date. In the first, second, and third exercise periods, 30%, 30%,
and 40% of the share options are entitled to be exercised under
the prerequisite of meeting performance conditions. The share
options will not be exercisable when participants fail to fulfil
BYD Semiconductor’'s performance as the conditions of exercise
or those currently not exercised after the end of the exercise
period shall become null and void and be repurchased without
consideration and cancelled by BYD Semiconductor. For further
details of the exercise period, performance appraisal objectives
(as conditions of the exercise of the share options) and further
details of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
Circular and note 13 to the financial statements in this report.

BEBREHEOL DB FLEERGEE A
33,088,235 % (AR E B Hi(h bt T2 - 8 5 i A%
A#)7.353%) o FARIRERERT BB TS RO
T B R RO A R B BN A A
AETEEE DEFEEN T - —F AT
B (RRARBREMETARSERETE 2H) B %
TIRABENI0% - RAREBH - RIETFAAR
EHAERT E MG IR IR BT ESR AR 4.54
70 (ZBIRIE 712 AR A B AT B MO IR SR R G 13 — &5
PR X Fhanm 8364 84 $£33,088,235
DX EHARE (B 7 R BIR AR ST B E T Al I T H9FT
BREERE) - BREBMAB K I0E T A R AR B
BB EEFRTERN203 824N LD KB
TN BHEZZE-—FNA=THIEANER
AR AT R KRR R

ANAZ+TH  FREREHRETEIE T MARITER
TEEARE o

FRAIBRER BN BERS g REBREE TR
R - WA BTG HE M REER T
BLHEEERER  TEBBTF - BEFAFR
EEE B TR RESERE S =T - BES
EBHEEE AR R A24(E A - 36188 & 481E
BeRE— FZRFE-MITFEH  RRAREEK
HFEIRIIRT * 30% * 30% M 40% KR HE BRRE A #ETT
N - ELEEREBEITL DB EEERITE
B EER - RTTEAREERIARITHE A ARE
HAMEAS IR - Wtk T - AR (1 A e T o
EBTHER - (EARERRBTERENEREZE
BB R FAGIRESRETINE—PHE  F
2EI%B R AR E N AN 13 -
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EMPLOYEE SHARE OWNERSHIP PLAN

Reference is made to the announcement dated 22 April 2022 and
the circular dated 5 May 2022 (the “Circular”) of the Company in
relation to, among others, the proposed adoption of the Employee
Share Ownership Plan (Draft). The adoption was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 27 May 2022.

The Employee Share Ownership Plan is beneficial for the
Company to establish and improve the benefit sharing mechanism,
enhance the cohesion of employees and the competitiveness of
the Company, realizing its long-term sustainable development.
Participants include employee representative supervisors, senior
management of the Company, middle level management and
core backbone employees of BYD Group. The total number of
participants of the Employee Share Ownership Plan shall not
exceed 12,000 persons. The Employee Share Ownership Plan will
transfer the shares of the Company to be repurchased through
non-trading transfer and other methods permitted by laws and
regulations. The transfer price is RMBO per Share, and the
participants do not need to make payments.

On 14 July 2022, the Company received the Confirmation of
Securities Transfer Registration issued by the Shenzhen Branch of
China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited. The
5,511,024 shares held by the designated securities repurchase
account of the Company have been transferred to the designated
securities account for the Employee Share Ownership Plan in the
form of non-trading transfer, and the number of shares transferred
accounted for approximately 0.189% of the total share capital
of the Company as at the date of this report. For details of the
repurchase of A Shares of the Company, please refer to the
section headed “Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities” in this report.

BETIHREE

EZRAAXRFBHAZZE-_ZFOA-F+_HHNA

ERAMATS-_—FTATAMNBR(ZREX)
RNABE (AP EE) 2EFERE THRTE (&
) ARBIRENARRRN T _—_FHA -+t
HERITHEF AR RS FHL AR -

B THREE - BRRARRZILTEE M
Hl - =S ﬁlﬁmﬁﬂ$“_”$ﬁ'ﬁﬁ¢¥

MREVFERE - 2HHKBEAQRANEBIN
REE SLTBRABURLDHEENTEEE
AE - BLUBBETI  28AE THRTEHEA
B 12,000 A « KX B THEHFRFTEIKREBIER
SPB/PEERERATNAAZBZATERLDBHA

AR - ZBERAROTL B 2EEREFHE
$ TEA_EZZEtﬂwLEEU&;UEP B
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BHEERR/R

30 June 2022
—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

30 June 31 December
2022 2021
=== —E-—%F
AA=+H +=ZA=+—H
Notes (Unaudited) (Audited)
b3 (REGFET) (&)
Assets EE
Current assets MEVEE
Monetary funds BEE® 44,686,176 50,457,097
Financial assets held for trading THEEHEE 1,431,944 5,606,052
Trade receivables JFE i B X 9 37,163,395 36,251,280
Receivables financing JEN R IEREE 10,970,135 8,743,126
Prepayments TR IR 2,312,220 2,036,577
Other receivables H b R BGR 1,453,231 1,410,751
Inventories & 57,235,044 43,354,782
Contract assets EREE 7,545,726 8,493,382
Long-term receivables due within one year —FREIEIR R ARG 848,024 1,231,667
Other current assets EMmeEE 18,922,687 8,525,475
Total current assets mBEEAR 182,568,582 166,110,189
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Long-term receivables REIFEW R 1,108,320 1,170,058
Long-term equity investments REARR IR E 8,426,666 7,905,001
Other equity instrument investments HibgEzm T AKRE 3,122,478 2,913,836
Other non-current financial assets EMIERES SR ERE 1,650,227 233,972
Investment properties HEEEHE 86,252 87,500
Fixed assets BEE&EE 69,924,659 61,221,365
Construction in progress EEIR 34,255,612 20,277,309
Right-of-use assets FREEE 1,724,320 1,573,232
Intangible assets mLEE 17,730,192 17,104,942
Development expenditures Mz 2,763,547 2,605,031
Goodwill EES 65,914 65,914
Long-term deferred expenditures REOGHER 163,148 77,432
Deferred tax assets EIEFTISTEE 2,532,034 1,913,316
Other non-current assets HtIERBEE 19,820,930 12,521,050
Total non-current assets FERBEEA 163,374,299 129,669,958
Total assets BEMEG 345,942,881 295,780,147

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial
statements.

1R P B 75 R P R S AN B TS TR R MO AR K ©
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SHEERRR

30 June 2022

—E-—FNRA=1+H
RMB'000 AREET T

30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—E_-_— —E-—%F
AA=+H +=ZA=+—H
Notes (Unaudited) (Audited)
izt (REEES) (g&F=sT)
Liabilities =F
Current liabilities MEAE
Short-term borrowings HHAfE K 10,178,867 10,204,358
Financial liabilities held for trading R emAasE 60,254 -
Bills payables FET IR 10 2,946,956 7,331,459
Trade payables FERTER K 11 93,087,986 73,160,167
Payments received in advance TEWRIA - 1,300
Contract liabilities aRaE 25,394,950 14,932,576
Employee benefits payables JRE 1< B T 37 B 6,692,859 5,848,870
Tax payables ERTE 1,897,318 1,779,018
Other payables HAth FEAS 3R 62,672,101 41,348,102
Provision TEETBE 3,608,651 2,355,564
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREEBRERE R E 9,345,604 12,983,416
Other current liabilities HEMRBEE 2,044,456 1,359,114
Total current liabilities nBBEA 217,930,002 171,303,944
Non-current liabilities EmEatE
Long-term borrowings REIE R 10,521,153 8,743,519
Bond payables JErHES - 2,046,439
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,527,654 1,415,291
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFGEHAE 804,417 609,566
Other non-current liabilities HEfIEREEE 8,919,389 7,417,179
Total non-current liabilities ERBAEET 21,772,613 20,231,994
Total liabilities BESE 239,702,615 191,535,938

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

1R P B 75 R P R S AN B TS TR R MO AR K ©
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BHEERR/R

30 June 2022
—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—E_-_— —E-—%F
AA=+H +=ZA=+—H
Notes (Unaudited) (Audited)
izt (REGFET) (&)
Shareholders’ equity IR RS
Shareholders’ equity AR R A
Share capital &N 12 2,911,143 2,911,143
Capital reserve BARRNFE 60,885,736 60,807,219
Less: Treasury shares B ETERR 1,809,920 -
Other comprehensive loss HEMirEEE (148,365) (124,055)
Special reserve HIHFE 15,843 10,369
Surplus reserve el YN 5,009,088 5,009,088
Undistributed profit KB F)HE 29,745,516 26,455,907
Total Shareholders’ equity attributable to BN ARIRRERES 96,609,041 95,069,671
the parent company
Non-controlling interests DB R R R 9,631,225 9,174,538
Total Shareholders’ equity fRRE=EET 106,240,266 104,244,209
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BEMRRER AT 345,942,881 295,780,147

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

The financial statement was signed by the following persons:

Legal representative:

Chief Financial Officer:

Wang Chuan-fu Zhou Ya-lin
ETELHFA - FTEEFIEBEA -
FEE =Y

ISR EATALEE

1R P B 75 R P R R AN TS TR R RO ALK ©

Head of Accounting Department:
Liu Hui

BIHBREA
EIE
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BOFRER

For the six months ended 30 June 2022
BE-_T-—FXA=+HItNEAEME
RMB'000 AR#FIT

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
Bz =
— - T4
NA=tHIE R~A=+AHIE
B A B 7~ A AR
Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
BiaE  (CGREES) (REEFER)
. Operating revenue —BEERA 5 150,607,252 90,885,400
Less: Operating costs B B ERA 5 130,265,478 79,284,918
Tax and surcharge i & B0 2,380,322 1,041,834
Selling expenses HEEMA 4,722,663 2.652,212
Administrative expenses EEEH 3,670,510 2,407,019
Research and development expenses HEEE A 5,424,256 2 995,687
Finance expenses M%ER (898,445) 955,784
Including: Interest expenses Hep - FIBER 652,684 1,019,726
Interest income FB WA 844,379 257,158
Add: Other income o Haplkas 649,549 964,288
Investment loss wEEK (369,664) (48,447)
Including: Investment gains/(losses) Hep: W RECENE S (404,634) (78,358)
in associates and joint EHRER
ventures @ (BK)
Loss on derecognition S ANETER (11,267) (82,285)
of financial assets SREER T
measured at amortised RIBK
cost
(Losses)/gains from changes in fair AREEEE (HEK) (16,041) 28,360
value Wz
Impairment loss on credit ERREBX (228,157) (58,254)
Impairment loss on asset BERERKX (431,992) (213,591)
Losses from disposal of assets BEREBRX (24,047) (4,062)
Il. Operating profit o EERNE 4,622,116 2,216,240
Add: Non-operating income o FEINKRA 211,760 144,787
Less: Non-operating expenses W BFEINT 192,395 156,912
lll. Total profit = FEEE 4,641,481 2,204,115
Less: Income tax expenses B S E A 6 708,345 393,344
IV. Net profit ~SRAE 3,933,136 1,810,771

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

1R P B 75 R P R S AN B TS TR R MO AR K ©
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BOFRER

For the six months ended 30 June 2022
BE-_ZT-—FXXA=t+HItNEAEME
RMB'000 AR#EFIT

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
Bz =
—EB-—F —E -4
NA=tHIE R~A=+AHIE
7~ E A HA R 7~ A AR
Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Mt (GREEES) (RegsEE)
V. Classified by continuity of operation - REEREMSE
Net profit from continuing operations FELEFFE 3,933,136 1,810,771
VI. Classified by ownership S RFEERESE
Net profit attributable to Shareholders of the SENTRRIFEEREFE 3,595,279 1,173,571
parent company
Non-controlling interests DVERRIEE 337,857 637,200
VII. Earnings per share (RMB/share) CEBRWE (T K)
Basic earnings per share EXRERKE 8 1.24 0.41
Diluted earnings per share wEgREE 8 1.24 0.41
VIIl.Other comprehensive losses Htnim B8 (27,754) (182,394)
Other comprehensive losses that cannot be  FHEESBEBRZNEMES
reclassified to profit or loss =]
Changes in fair value of other equity HEfEmTEREAREER 94,158 (183,571)
instrument investments #E)
Income tax impact Fristiz 2 (17,589) -
Other comprehensive losses that will be BESEEERNEMES
reclassified to profit or loss B8
Exchange difference on foreign currency INERERITE =58 (91,727) 9,508
translation
Changes in fair value of receivables financing FERFIERE AR BEE (10,850) (10,801)
Provision for credit impairment of receivables JEU G IE R & = AR ZEH 1,698 3,310
financing
Other comprehensive losses attributable to FBROHERENEMSE (3,444) (840)

non-controlling interests, net of tax

BERANBEFR

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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BOFRER

For the six months ended 30 June 2022
BE-_T-—FXA=+HItNEAEME
RMB'000 AR#FIT

For the For the

six months six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

BZE H=

—E-—F T4

NA=tHIE R<A=+AHIE

7~ E A HA R 7~ & A HAf

Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

k3 (REEET) (REEFER)

IX. Total comprehensive income T ZEWNEEEE 3,905,382 1,628,377

Among which: Hr

Total comprehensive income attributable to EBEBNRARRENGE 3,570,969 992,017
shareholders of the parent company W 4B EE

Total comprehensive income attributable to 334,413 636,360

non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Owners’ Equity

SORREZSE X

For the six months ended 30 June 2022

HE-_ZT——
RMB'000 AREETIT
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Owners’ Equity
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For the six months ended 30 June 2022
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BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

O RS RER

For the six months ended 30 June 2022
BE-_ZT-—FXXA=t+HItNEAEME
RMB'000 AR#EFIT

For the For the

six months six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

Bz HE

— g5 T4

ANA=+HIE R~A=t+HBIE

A~EA BB 7~ 1E A A

Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

B (REEEST) (REEFER)

. Cash flows from operating activities: - RETHEENRESRE

Cash received from sales of goods and HEEM - REREKEHN 152,837,481 71,626,773
provision of services Be

Tax rebates received W B ey i B g 4,698,994 1,889,355

Cash received from other activities relating o Bl E b BB AT 2R B B RE A 2,756,183 3,001,209
to operations e

Sub-total of cash inflows from operating CEREIE A/ NET 160,292,658 76,517,337

activities

Cash paid for goods and services BERSR  BEXREZHH 86,459,497 47,970,468
Re

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees RGBT R R TZ 21,597,732 12,609,241
Re

Cash paid for various types of taxes YRS EHRE 5,947,505 3,435,370

Cash paid for other activities relating to ST E MG TEE A R 3,102,757 2.825,413
operations RE

Sub-total of cash outflows from operating CERENIR e/ NET 117,107,491 66,840,492

activities
Net cash flow from operating activities CEERBELMNIREREFHE 43,185,167 9,676,845

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

R B TS MR PR R AR IS IR VAR ER D ©



Interim Report 2022
SR CEREERE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BORERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2022
BE-_T-—FXA=+HItNEAEME
RMB'000 AR#FIT

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
Bz HE
— g5 T4
ANA=+HIE R~A=t+HBIE
A~EA BB 7~ 1E A A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&EE) (REEFER)
Il. Cash flow from investing activities: T RETHELENRERE !
Cash received from disposal of investments W B & W EIR IR & 13,779 -
Cash received from gains in investment BEHRERZKRE RS 45,062 121,428
Net cash received from disposals of BETRARIMEMEEELN - 931
subsidiaries and other operating entities I BI/IE & F 8
Net cash received from disposals of fixed REETEE  BFEEME 182,747 119,832
assets, intangible assets and other long- thREVEEREI IR F5E
term assets
Cash received from other activities relating W B HE A ER3 B R B A B AY 7,602,965 7,769,956
to investments Re
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing "B RSB RANET 7,844,553 8.012,147
activities
Cash paid for purchase and construction of BREETEE  EFEEMNHE 36,128,310 10,407,215
fixed assets, intangible assets and other thRAEESZ NSRS
long-term assets
Cash paid for investments BEY RS 2,463,808 686,428
Cash paid for other activities relating to Y EMESE RS AN 12,060,000 9,837,332
investments Re
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing ®ERBIB SN DT 50,652,118 20,930,975

activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities

BRERBDEENEDREFHE

(42,807,565)

(12,918,828)

Ill. Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash received from capital injection
Cash received from borrowings
Cash received from other financing

activities

= -BEFHELNRESRE
R B BB ER &
BUSERREIHRE
WEINEBEEEREHERN

Re

276,625
19,435,013

25,061,668
19,414,712

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

BB TS AR IR R AR IS BRR VAR ER D ©
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BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

O RS RER

For the six months ended 30 June 2022
BE-_ZT-—FXXA=t+HItNEAEME

RMB'000 AREETIT

For the For the

six months six months
ended ended

30 June 30 June
2022 2021

BZE qHE

— g5 T4
ANA=+HLE SNA=+HL

A~EA BB 7~ 1E A A
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
B (REEST) (REEFER)
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing BEFHHSIMANDE 19,711,638 44,476,380
activities
Cash paid for repayment of debts BREBZNNRE 23,418,888 31,074,093
Cash payments for distribution of dividends, DERCA] ~ FESE R B S 736,927 1,254,811
profits or interest expenses Lok
Including: Interest paid for other equity i I EMmERT AR - 61,600
instruments B
Cash paid for redemption of perpetual BRKEBELZMHRS - 1,100,000
bonds
Cash paid relating to other financing Y EMEEEESHEENR 4,558,149 407,953
activities &
Sub-total of cash outflows from financing EEFEYR /AN 28,713,964 33,836,857
activities
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing EEEY(FR) EEHNRE (9,002,326) 10,639,523
activities mEFRE
IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes -EXSBHESRESEEY 141,750 16,261
on cash and cash equivalents A
V. Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash T - B&RBESZEWE (BL), (8,482,974) 7,413,801
equivalents g
Add: cash and cash equivalents at the e EBYIRe RIBEEEY 49,819,860 13,738,498
beginning of the Period BREE
VI. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of > HIRBRERREZEYHE 41,336,886 21,152,299

the Period

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

R B TS MR PR R AR IS IR VAR ER D ©



Interim Report 2022
SR CEREERE

Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

BYD Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint stock
limited company registered in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). The Company’s H shares have been
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 31 July 2002. The registered office of the Company
is located at Yan An Road, Kuichong, Dapeng District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises- Basic Standard” issued by the Ministry of
Finance and the specific accounting standards, application
guidelines, interpretations and other relevant regulations
issued and revised thereafter (collectively known as the
“ASBE”).

The financial statements are prepared on going concern
basis. As at 30 June 2022, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB35,361,420 thousand. In view of such
circumstances, the management of the Company has given
consideration to the future liquidity and financial resources
available to the Group, which mainly include the net cash
flows generated from the Group’'s operating activities and
sufficient financial credit facilities, in assessing whether the
Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue
as a going concern. Therefore, the management of the
Company is of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare
the financial statements on a going concern basis.

B 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-—FNRA=1+H
RMB'000 AREET T

DAEH

e AR AR ([ARAF]) BEFEA
RAME ([HhE ) BROBROERLIE - &
ARAWHEE —Z2 -+ A=+ —HRE
BERMARZMARAR LT - RABMGE
11 39 25 B i 1 rp B SR AR R Y T R B T [ 2%
TREIE R B

AT

AR IZ R BB E MO (D E &
A — EARERD AR HZRM RIS AR
SETER - EAER - BEAREMERR
E (e[ e £ ) RE -

R BMEAFELCERERI R - BEZ
T FRNA=Z+H AEEFRDEEA
AR¥35,361,420F 70 - EREBEBR -
ARREREENGAEERS ABEHY
BERUSELER BEZRAEERK
MBESMAARAESANTHER - =2
BEASELLEHEENRES M EFEN
BERRNEREERE  TeR2EES®
R MEERE AR ECE T ERRME
I ARFERERABAFERLE RERR
R EHREZHEED ©
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BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAE

Notes to Financial Statements

Br 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

3.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group, as a lessee, has accounted for all lease-related
rent concessions in previous years in accordance with the
simplified method under the “Provisions on Accounting
Treatment of Rent Concessions Related to the COVID-19
Pandemic”. According to the Notice on the Relevant Issues
Concerning the Application of the Provisions on Accounting
Treatment of Rent Concessions Related to the COVID-19
Pandemic issued in May 2022, the Company continued to
adopt a simplified method for rent concessions similar to
leases.

According to the “Consultation Conclusions on Acceptance
of Mainland Accounting and Auditing Standards and
Mainland Audit Firms for Mainland Incorporated Companies
Listed in Hong Kong” published by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 10 December 2010 and effective from 15
December 2010 and the relevant amendments to the
Listing Rules, Mainland incorporated issuers listed in Hong
Kong are allowed to prepare their financial statements
in accordance with the China Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises, and Mainland audit firms approved
by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of
China and the China Securities Regulatory Commission
(the “Approved Mainland Audit Firms”) are eligible to
provide auditing services to these issuers using the China
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises. In view of
the above and given that the financial statements of the
Company prepared in accordance with the CASBE are
basically the same as the financial statements prepared
in accordance with the HKFRS, at the 20th meeting of the
seventh session of the Board held on 29 March 2022, the
Board has resolved to prepare only one set of financial
statements in accordance with the CASBE for each future
financial reporting period commencing from the financial
year of 2022. The relevant resolutions were approved by
way of ordinary resolutions at the annual general meeting
held on 8 June 2022. The Company believes that such
adjustment is in compliance with the applicable laws,
regulations, regulatory documents and the Articles of
Association of the Company, and will not have a material
impact on the operating results or financial position of the
Company.

B BREE

AEBEREABEA  RURIFEHMEEE
HEE - F6 CGhEA R ERBEEDRE
BETRERE ) GREESRE - RREIL
TEETEHRE c AHRE_FT__F1h
RemndERER GhEMAREREES
RS R BIEAR ) HEARE A EA) - AR
HRUBENAREMNESRERBELCS
e

REEBBIAN-_ZT—ZF+=-_A+BT
B OURZE-ZEF+_ATHARBAENR
M(EBESER S LR ERKZA
RIRA AN A S5 R E R A &I A A
SRS ST AmAs) k EmAR A
FAEE] BB LN AT
ANEEFRATBECESHERNRRENS
IR - MAEAREE AR R B SR K A B RS
FEBTEZ B SR AN NS TS
(MzERME M=) B ERKATE
ESHENRZERIT ARBELRE -
ER BB UWRIRBRESESEL
RENADNRMIBEHREREIZBEEY KRS
HAFBRNMBEHREELA - R-T==
FZA-ZTARETHNELtREESESE -1
REZL BEEEERAEA T __FNY
BEERE  REERRNIEHREHER
BABECESHEAIRR —ENBRE - B
BRZEEN -_ZE - —FXA/N\BHETHRE
BERG FAT@ERERSTNESHE - K
NAERE  ZABRFRERNERZ  RR -
HBXHERAATHATER BTy
RARMEEEE LT BERAEEEARY
@,



Interim Report 2022
SR CEREERE

Notes to Financial Statements

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

On 29 March 2022, the Board also resolved to (1) cease
to appoint Ernst & Young as the international auditor of the
Company; and (2) the appointment of Ernst & Young Hua
Ming LLP (being the Company’s existing domestic auditor
and one of the approved domestic accounting firms) as the
Company’s sole external auditor (the “Proposed Cessation
of Appointment of International Auditor”) for the preparation
of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with
CASBE. The relevant resolutions were approved by way of
ordinary resolutions at the annual general meeting held on
8 June 2022. Ernst & Young has confirmed that there are no
circumstances in connection with the proposed cessation
of appointment of international auditor that need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders. The Board
and the audit committee of the Company confirmed that
there is no disagreement between the Company, the audit
committee of the Company and Ernst & Young regarding
the proposed cessation of appointment of international
auditor. Each of the Board and the audit committee of the
Company has further confirmed that it is not aware of any
matter in relation to the proposed cessation of appointment
of international auditor that needs to be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders.

SEGMENT REPORTING
Operating segment

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services.
Due to the growth of the electric vehicle business, the
increase in correlation between the main business of
rechargeable batteries and the electric vehicle business
during the Period, the management decided to consolidate
the rechargeable batteries and photovoltaic segment with
the automobile, automobile-related products and other
products segment for the Period. The segment information
for the same period of last year was restated on the
basis of the current Period. The Group currently has two
reportable segments as follows:

a) the mobile handset components, assembly
service and other products segment comprises
the manufacture and sale of mobile handset
components such as housings, electronic
components, the provision of assembly services and
medical protection products income.

B 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-—FNRA=1+H
RMB'000 AREET T

B ERREE (&)

RZZEZZF=ZA=Z+NH EEFSINAEH
(MTBEREZKEHAMEBMALAGR
BRAZEAD  R(2)ZRRLKERSTMER
Fr(fnEmaR) (BARRRERNZE
B iz NG ETRI RIS —) fEAARR
A — N EM ([RETHZEREZ
AP  AEARRRBEF R ESFER
MBI HRE - EARABZER T __FX
ANBRITHBRFAFAS AL @RRZER
FRERHE - KSR ERATEERM
EHUERTHEZERBZEMNERAR
FREET - EEYRALRBEZREZECH
R ARA ARRBEREEGHET KGR
MEBMREEEEETET BB EA
MERDE BEEERARAEZZESS
HE#E—SHR  UTNBREEEETES
FEEEZEMN TR EEARBREEE -

7 EBER
e

HREE B AEBERERERMNRE S D
EBET - BEAEEBNER AP K
BEENTEEBNES) TH XM EE
me EREREARE CRFTEEMEAR
DEEAE  REHEAERREMERD S
BHIR - EFRBMNHRE D EEBIRAH
OEgETEM - AEBEENA_EHRSD
#B o R

a) FHEL  ERREMGERD R
BEMEEIREFHRLETERN
IR ERARRYE  DERVEE
A o
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BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAE

Notes to Financial Statements

Br 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—7——45'5/\)% +E
RMB'000 AREETIT

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
Operating segment (continued)

b) the automobiles and related products and other
products segment comprises the manufacture and
sale of automobiles and auto-related molds and
components and automobile leasing and after sales
services, automobile power batteries, lithium-ion
batteries, photovoltaic products and iron battery
products - rail transport related business and
medical protection products income.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that
gains or losses arising from changes in fair value, finance
costs (excluding interest expenses on lease liabilities
and exchange gains or losses), non-operating income,
other income, losses on disposal of assets, non-operating
expenses, investment income (excluding investment
income from associates and joint ventures), income from
sales of properties and the corresponding costs, as well
as administrative expenses incurred by the Company
as the Group’s head quarter are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, goodwill,
financial assets held for trading, other equity instrument
investments, other non-current financial assets, investment
properties and assets occupied by the Company as the
Group’s head quarter as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred income tax liabilities,
tax payable, other current liabilities, other non-current
liabilities, short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings,
bonds payable, interest payable and dividends payable
in other payables, financial liabilities held for trading
and liabilities assumed by the Company as the Group’s
headquarter as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.

b) AECUERBERKEMBERDH
BRREUENMIHETE  AERENRE
ARZTEM  AEHEMTENER
MR - AEBHEM - EEFED
RRERAREBBER - UBRAE
REMBEBRHRDEERBA -

EEEHNEEERNFBEENREKR
E’J CHEERBETNRERNRIRAETE
o DERA AR E W D BRAE A ERETT

aTrfjgiﬂE%a*?%?éﬁ'J/Fﬁ BRI TTHERNE
B BIAERAAEEERERD  MBEER
(KHEEBBMNEXHMENERE) - EXI
WA - Hfplas - BERERKX - BN
h BN (REBEEEMAEREDN
REWEIN) HEFERAMYEHRA
ARARAHEREBEANELENERERZ
S RIEIREARE N EAELS B -

DHEETRRBEEMEHEE  BE X
HUHTHMEE  HBSTARE - Hib3F
RBTRMEE  REUEMENEARFES
SEAMERNEE  RRENELEEN
MAEELG—EIE -

DHEEIBRELEMEHREE  BXH
& HRBHAE  HMIFRBDAE  BH
&k - REMES - BES - HEN RS
B ES R S AE A BCR » R B2 R B EA
ARAEREBERMAENEE  REE
NELEBEYHAKER—EE -
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SR CEREERE

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-FKA=1+H
RMB'000 ARFIT
SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 4. DHFHE (H)
Operating segment (continued) KREDI (&)
Transfer pricing in operating segments is determined with BEHEENEREE - KRBREE DA
reference to the agreed price among operating segments. BEBIREITE -
Mobile
handset
components, Automobiles
assembly and related Adjustments
service and products and and
other products other products eliminations Total
FHEH RE
For the six months ended 30 June 2022 HEZZ-ZERAZTH AER RERBER
(unaudited) E~BARE (REST) HtER REMER BENEH &it
Revenue from external trading HHRFMA 41,069,650 109,267,418 270,184 150,607,252
Revenue from inter-segment trading ABEXZMA 2,915,152 1,865,967 (4,781,119) -
Total Bit 43,984,802 111,133,385 (4,510,935) 150,607,252
Capital expenditure ERMES 2,275,406 37,751,788 - 40,027,194
Total profit/(losses) E/(B8) 0% 674,802 3,856,265 110,414 4,641,481
Income tax expense FEHER 56,114 569,730 82,501 708,345
Depreciation and amortization RERMBH 1,554,151 7,601,059 - 9,155,210
Share of losses of joint ventures and HACBEPENRERL - 404,634 - 404,634
associates
As at 30 June 2022 BE-B--FRAZTH
(Unaudited) (RECEH)
Total assets EESE 42,792,478 282,791,738 20,358,665 345,942,881
Long-term equity investments in HAENRECENRERERE - 8,426,666 - 8,426,666
joint ventures and associates
Total liabilities BEEE 19,696,589 186,465,086 33,540,940 239,702,615
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BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAE

Notes to Financial Statements

Br 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

4. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 4 P EERE (&)
Operating segment (continued) K& (&)
Mobile
handset
components, Automobiles
assembly and related Adjustments
service and products and and
other products other products gliminations Total
T g
For the six months ended 30 June 2021 BE-2--5xA=1H BER AEERER
(unaudited) EABRSE (REET) EftEm REMER pikgilin= At
Revenue from external trading HMIEWA 43,132,455 47,443,742 309,203 90,885,400
Revenue from inter-segment trading AHAISRA 1318,815 1,438,584 (2,757,399) -
Total At 44,451,270 48,882,326 (2,448,196) 90,885,400
Capital expenditure UNiS T 2,589,672 8,542,858 - 11,132,530
Total profit/(losses) g/ (5R) &8 1,245,187 1718,703 (759,775) 2,204,115
Income tax expense FrEHER 111,419 282,350 (425) 393,344
Depreciation and amortization MEMNEH 1,292,294 5,103,691 - 6,395,985
Share of losses of joint ventures HAEBEMEMRARR - 78,358 - 78,358
and associates
As at 31 December 2021 BE-E--%+ZR=1-H
(audited) (&)
Total assets BESR 43,371,219 238,336,286 14,072,642 295,780,147
Long-term equity investments in HeeERnetEnRARERE - 7,905,001 - 7,905,001
joint ventures and associates
Total liabilities BELE 18,884,526 134,684,981 37,966,431 191,535,938
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SR CEREERE

Notes to Financial Statements

B RSER AR M EE

30 June 2022

—EC=FA=TH

RMB'000 ARFIT

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 4, P EERE (&)

Other information HiEE
Geographical information W@ A58
Operating revenue EEIRA

For the For the

six months six months

ended ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

BZE HE

—E- 8 —E-—F

ANA=+HLE NA=THIE

7B A HA R 7~ A B

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REE) (RegsEsD)

PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau RE (RESRAHE) 117,224,189 61,455,046

and Taiwan)
Overseas AN 33,383,063 29,430,354
150,607,252 90,885,400

Revenue from external transactions is attributed to the
location of customers.

IR ZWABRBREFPMER -

Total non-current assets JEMBEELTE
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—_E-= T4
AAB=tH +Z—A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REET) (& &|ET)
PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau PE (RESRAHE) 152,289,849 121,102,905
and Taiwan)
Overseas % 2,605,477 2,269,957
154,895,326 123,372,862
Non-current assets exclude goodwill, other equity FENBDEERBRZEEMERE - T8EF

instrument investments, other non-current financial assets,
long-term receivables and deferred income tax assets
attributed to the region where the assets are located.

B HtRETARE  HiERSEm
BE  REBYMELHEHREE -
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30 June 2022
—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

4, SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
Other information (continued)

Information about major customers

For the six months ended 30 June 2022, operating revenue
of RMB17,888,497 thousand (for the six months ended 30
June 2021: RMB16,274,008 thousand) was derived from
sales by the handset components, assembly services and
other products segment to a single customer.

5. REVENUE AND COST OF OPERATING

HE_Z- X XA=1+AH1LEAHMK -
BEWAARKE17,888,497FT L (HE-Z
ZT—FXNAZ+HILEANBEABHE: AR
16,274,008 F7T) 2R B F# a0 4F - HE R E
MEREDDBEUE—BETFHKA -

5. EXRBARKE

For the six months ended

For the six months ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
HEZ-B--FXA=tHL HE-Z-_—-5 A=THL

NEAHE NGl R

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEL) (REezsr)
REVENUE COST REVENUE COST
KA A YA 3%
Revenue from principal operations FEEBHA 146,774,501 127,333,625 87,780,769 77,344,502
Other operating revenue EhEHKBA 3,832,751 2,931,853 3,104,631 1,940,416
150,607,252 130,265,478 90,885,400 79,284,918

Operating Revenue is as follows: EEWAIITRT

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BZE H=E
—E-—F T4
ANA=+HIE NAZTHIE
7B A HA R 7~ & A HAfE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&EST) (REEEE)
Sale of goods and construction services HE MM EERE 150,395,902 90,204,744
Rendering of services TR AR 211,350 680,656
150,607,252 90,885,400
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30 June 2022
—E-__FXA=1H
RMB'000 ARFIT
REVENUE AND COST OF OPERATING 5. EERARKA (&)
(CONTINUED)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers HEPZHAEREENEZRAD RIS
is as follows: ™
Mobile
handset
components,  Automobiles
assembly and related
service products,
and other and other
products*® products* Others Total
FHREH RE
January to June 2022 (Unaudited) =~ =—Z==£—-ZxA (KEHF) AER  RENREER
Reportable segments READ HinE R REMER Hith it
Principal place of operation IELLE
PRC (including Hong Kong, FE (REEREIE) 15,062,768 101,891,237 270,184 117,224,189
Macau and Taiwan)
Overseas B 26,006,882 7,376,181 - 33,383,063
41,069,650 109,267,418 270,184 150,607,252
Major product types IEEMBN
Sales of goods and construction HEHMRBERS 41,003,536 109,122,959 269,407 150,395,902
services
Rendering of services RERE 66,114 144,459 777 211,350
41,069,650 109,267,418 270,184 150,607,252
Timing of revenue recognition WA BERERE
Goods transferred at a point in time~~ EX—EEBRUA 41,003,536 108,532,875 268,788 149,805,199
Service transferred over time EX-BERNEIRA 66,114 734,543 1,396 802,053
41,069,650 109,267,418 270,184 150,607,252
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30 June 2022
—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

5. REVENUE AND COST OF OPERATING 5. EEWARKE (F)
(CONTINUED)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers HEPZHAEREENEZRAD RIS
is as follows (continued): T (&) :
Mobile
handset
components, Automobiles
assembly and related
service products,
and other and other
products* products* Others Total
Fsm - RE
January to June 2021 (Unaudited) “E--F-EXA(REET) mER  ABHEBER
Reportable segments WEDE HitEm* REMER" Hit A&l
Principal place of operation IELLE
PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau FE (BEBREHE) 22,292,252 38,853,591 309,203 61,455,046
and Taiwan)
Overseas B 20,840,203 8,590,151 - 29,430,354
43,132,455 47,443,742 309,203 90,885,400
Major product types IEEMBN
Sales of goods and construction HEHMRBERS 43,021,944 46,873,876 308,924 90,204,744
services
Rendering of services RHERS 110,511 569,866 279 680,656
43,132,455 47,443,742 309,203 90,885,400
Timing of revenue recognition WA BERERE
Goods transferred at a point in time A E— B2 R 43,021,944 46,319,000 308,924 89,649,868
Service transferred over time EX-BERNEIRA 110,511 1,124,742 279 1,235,532
43,132,455 47,443,742 309,203 90,885,400

related products and other products.

Sales of medical protection products are included in
the sales of mobile handset components, assembly
service and other products and automobiles and

FHA AR REMERTITE -7
EHRMEERREMERNBASERIE
PRMERER °
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REVENUE AND COST OF OPERATING
(CONTINUED)

Sales of goods

Performing obligations is satisfied when delivering goods
to customers. Some contract customers are entitled to
rebates, which require estimation of variable consideration
and consideration of constraint on the amount of variable
consideration.

Construction services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and are billed based on construction
progress.The customers usually retain a certain percentage
of the retention money, which is usually paid after the
expiration of the warranty period.

Rendering of services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and the settlement of the contract
price is subject to the agreement in the contract.

B 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-_FXA=1H
RMB'000 AREET T
EEWARKA (F)
HEER

ARPXNERBETROES - BHER
BFEETEEF - EUEE G
W E TR HESBGRS -

BER%

ERERENEMANBITRANRE - Aﬁﬁ‘i
RBEBEBIREEYS BERFPRE—T
LA ERE RSB %E’%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ/ﬁfﬁi
5 o

RUER%E

ERERBNERABITENERS  6RE
REHAG R ERE -

INCOME TAX EXPENSES RriEHE R
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BZE HE
—E-CF T —F
ANA=+HIE KNA=Zt+HIE
7B A HA R 7~ 1E A B
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REGET) (REEER)
Current income tax expenses %Hﬁﬁﬁ SHEM 1,149,820 290,311
Deferred income tax expenses BT ER (441,475) 103,033
708,345 393,344

59



60

BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAE

Notes to Financial Statements

Br 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

6.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 6. FriEBiER (&)
The relationship between income tax and total profit is as FrisTHi 8 A EF HAENBEEIIRET
follows:
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BZE HZE
=== T —%F
ANB=+HIE KNA=t+HIE
NME B H S 7~ A A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REGFEST) (RegsE)
Total profit INEE R 4,641,481 2,204,115
Income tax at the statutory tax rate (Note 1) AT RTENFER (1) 1,160,370 551,029
Effect of different tax rates applicable RLEFRAERTRMENTE (422,542) (223,945)
to certain subsidiaries
Profit or loss attributable to joint ventures BEREELENBLECERNBLE 24,056 20,156
and associates
Non-deductible expenses AR E A (34,461) 13,411
Tax losses and temporary differences not RERNH G EEREREZER 988,442 545,868
recognised
Deductible tax losses utilised from A A RTE E ] S8 (397,667) (174,815)
previous years
Effect of changes in tax rate on the balance %X & &) & BRI AT S F 858 2,598 -
of deferred income tax at the beginning EpfZ
of the Period
Super-deduction of research and ity (612,451) (338,360)
development expenses
Income tax charge at the Group's effective RSB BRI X EPTSH 708,345 393,344

tax rate

ZH

Note 1:The Group’s income tax has been provided at the
statutory rate based on the estimated taxable profits

arising in the PRC.

i1

REEFRFERIZED BHE ARG
AT TS8R BOETE M R FHR ©
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8.

30 June 2022
—E-FKA=1+H
RMB'000 ARFIT
7. DIVIDENDS 7. B E
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
Bz HE
—ZE=-— —EFE-—F
ANA=t+HIE ANA=tHIE
7B B HA R 7~ A B
Unaudited Unaudited
(REFESH) (REEFER)
Final dividend declared — RMB0.105 BEEIRAE - BREBRK 305,670 423,449
(2021: RMBO0.148) per ordinary share AR#0.1057C
(ZZ——%F: AR¥0.14870)
EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR ORDINARY 8. AAAEBRBRRESRKE
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BZE #H=
=8=-= T4
ANA=tHL NAZ+HLIE
NME A B 7~ & A HAf
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REGFET) (REEFER)
RMB/share RMB/share
AR®T B ARBIT K
Basic earnings per share EXRGR K
Continuing operations SELE 1.24 0.41
Diluted earnings per share e RS
Continuing operations R 1.24 0.41
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net ERGRNSIEBBNARR BRI ED
profit for the Period attributable to ordinary shareholders EEFEME - /Uéiblﬁi\ﬁﬁ%\ TARBEEN

of the Company, less distribution to holders of other equity
instruments by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding. The number of newly issued ordinary
shares shall be calculated and determined from the date
of consideration receivable (generally the date of share
issuance) according to the specific terms of the issuance
contract.

’J}EE " BRABEITE SN B AR e A T S &

o BT AR - BIBBITERA
E‘%ﬁ?& CREWHE Y B (— R ARE
TH) R ERE -
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30 June 2022
—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

8.

EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR ORDINARY 8. FAREBERRRER WS ()
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share HAEHE

are based on:

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BZ HE
—E=-= —E -4
ANA=+H ~A=+H
WREARRE L/ E AR
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEST) (REEFER)
Revenue Wz
Net profit for the Period attributable to BBRANR L BRRENE S 3,595,279 1,173,571
ordinary shareholders of the Company K
Less: Interest paid to other equity WE INHMERTAERES - 19,274
instrument holders for the Period B AN ER A2
Net profit for the Period for calculating AUGTEEARGRKNZEDE 8 3,595,279 1,154,297
basic earnings per share ENE
Shares &1
Weighted average number of ordinary A RIEATEINE WA hnfE 2,910,225 2,838,976
shares in issue (thousands) FHE(FAR)
Basic/diluted earnings per share AR /wmigeiikes 1.24 0.41

The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares.

AR EHELEELER
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B RSER AR M EE

30 June 2022
—E-—FNRA=1+H
RMB'000 AREET T
FEUBR R

REEERAETEZFHEAEEE A30K
2360k ° BUIERFRIW TEHE o

TRADE RECEIVABLES 9.

The credit terms offered to the major customers of the
Group are generally 30 to 360 days. Trade receivables are

non-interest-bearing.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

FEM R R BRER DA AT

30 June December 31

2022 2021

=== —E-—%F

ANA=+H +ZH=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBEST) (&)

Within 1 year 1F AR 25,617,352 21,583,182

110 2 years 1FEZE2F 6,889,584 8,459,056

2 to 3 years 2FEIF 4,086,186 5,184,146

Over 3 years 3F AL 2,910,035 3,179,295

Total &t 39,503,157 38,405,679

Less: Provision for bad debts of B FEOBR PR AR E 2,339,762 2,154,399
trade receivables

37,163,395 36,251,280

The subsidies of new energy automobiles sales are
included in the above trade receivables.

bt U R SR FEUCHT BE IR T B RA K -
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—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

9. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 9. R (&)

30 June 2022 (Unaudited)
“E-EXA=THE (REET)

Amount of Percentage of
Book balance Percentage (%) bad debts provision (%)
IRE A EE 41 (%) BESE  SHREAI(%)
Individually assessed expected credit  EHEFEBHERELRGHR 1,016,030 2.57 990,193 97.46
losses provision for bad debts ZREE
Provision for bad debts based on RERRRAATEESER 38,487,127 97.43 1,349,569 3.51
expected credit losses assessed by  BREHEERER
credit risk portfolio
39,503,157 100.00 2,339,762

31 December 2021 (audited)

—E--F+-f=+—-H(8FH)

Amount of  Percentage of
Book balance Percentage (%) bad debts  provision (%)
REEAE EE (%) BREE  ARIHI%)
Individually assessed expected credit  EIBFHEEHEABRIE 959,403 2.50 958,328 99.89
losses provision for bad debts EHRER
Provision for bad debts based on RERRRAESTFHEESRER 37,446,276 97.50 1,196,071 3.19
expected credit losses assessed by BAFITERERE
credit risk portfolio
38,405,679 100.00 2,154,399
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group’s trade receivables with provision for bad debts
based on credit risk portfolio are as follows:

New energy business

B 75 R R B

30 June 2022
R ZFXA=1H
RMB'000 AREFIT
FEUWEBRRX (48)
REEZERARKAEESFTIRERERER
ERRBERAT
e R ER
30 June 2022 (Unaudited)
—E-—FEXNA=1+H (REE)

Book
balance of Expected Credit loss
estimated credit loss throughout
default rate (%) the lifetime

fhEta 4%

B AHE A BEFE
AR ERER BAE(%) HMEEREX

Within 1 year (inclusive) 1EAR(E15F) 14,127,301 2.08 293,286
1-2 years (inclusive) 1-2F (52F) 6,694,249 2.81 188,241
2-3 years (inclusive) 2-3F (83%) 3,999,715 3.44 137,765
3-4 years (inclusive) 3-4F (F44) 1,048,160 9.08 95,201
4-5 years (inclusive) 4-5% (F5%) 680,042 33.78 229,730
Over 5 years 5% LA F 64,793 100.00 64,793

26,614,260 1,009,016

Note: New energy business includes new energy subsidies

Non-new energy business

B FREBAFMERBER

FEHBERER

30 June 2022 (Unaudited)
—EB--FXA=1H REHEH)

Book
balance of Expected Credit loss
estimated credit loss  throughout
default rate (%) the lifetime

fhEt S

EBAH RE A BEFHR
AR EREE BARE(%) HMEEREX

Within 1 year(inclusive) 1TFELR(E1F)
Over 1 year 1F A E

11,493,068 0.55 63,004
379,799 73.08 277,549

11,872,867 340,553
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30 June 2022

R ZFA=1H
RMB'000 AR#EFIT

9. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As at 30 June 2022, the individual provision made for bad

9. FEUEBRF (&)
R-ZZT-—FXA=+H BE:REERE

debts of trade receivables is as follows: HEHRBERRIBE R T -
Expected
Book Provision for credit loss
balance bad debts rate (%) Reason
HHER
IREEREE RIR%ES BERE% HRER
Customer 1 ®E— 156,202 156,202 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
AR EE N
Customer 2 P 110,377 110,377 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
FEETEE W E
Customer 3 BE= 84,616 84,616 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
FEFHEE N
Customer 4 ey 74,601 74,601 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
FEETEEWE
Customer 5 BFER 45,675 45,675 100.00 Customer has
gone bankrupt
EFEWE
Other HAh 544,559 518,722 95.26
Total &art 1,016,030 990,193
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B RSER AR M EE

30 June 2022
R ZFXA=1H
RMB'000 AREFIT
9. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 9. FEWBRRR (48)
As at 31 December 2021, the individual provision made for R-E-—F+-_fF=+—H BHEEE
bad debts of trade receivables is as follows: BREFEERERFIE RN ¢
Expected
Book Provision for credit loss
balance bad debts rate (%) Reason
TEEE A

AR R BARES BRE% FHREMR

Customer 1 ®pF— 156,202 156,202 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
SRR
Customer 2 P 110,377 110,377 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
TaEt AN E
Customer 3 ®E= 84,616 84,616 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
SEE 97 g
Customer 4 EP 74,601 74,601 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
At AT
Customer 5 PR 43,371 43,371 100.00 Customer has
gone bankrupt
BERBEBE
Other Hh 490,236 489,161 99.78

Total At 959,403 958,328
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30 June 2022
—E-FXA=1+H

RMB'000 AREETIT

9.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The movements of provision for bad debts are as follows:

FE W AR ()
FEW R TR AR Z BT

Exchange
differences
Balance at on Balance
beginning Charge Reversal Write-off  translation at the end
of the for the for the  during the of foreign of the
Period/year  Period/year  Period/year Period/year  operations Period/year
B/ & xH 8/ F 8/ F MEBRR B/ %
NBE iR #BE EH THEER REBHE
30 June 2022 ZTZZFRA=THE 2,154,399 369,154 (183,780) (824) 813 2,339,762
(Unaudited) (REEE:T)
31 December 2021 T -F 2,022,239 659,617 (194,928) (322,937) (9,592) 2,154,399
(Audited) +-F=1+-8H
(&)

There was no significant change in the balance of provision
for bad debts of trade receivables during the Period. (2021:
There was no significant change in the balance of provision

for bad debts of trade receivables during the year.)

For the Period ended 30 June 2022, there was no

significant reversal or recovery of trade receivables.

In 2021, there was no significant reversal or recovery of

trade receivables.

AHEKETEREGHRBEEAES -
(ZF = —F : AFRREFTRREFHRE
BEAEH )

REBEE-T-—FRA=THHHE E&FX

JRE M5 BR R B S B R o

RIT-—FE  BEAREIRRE R SR
BlER
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

In the ordinary course of business, the Group transfers part
of its trade receivables to financial institutions on a non-
recourse basis for short-term financing needs, and enters
into non-recourse trade receivables factoring agreements
(hereinafter referred to as “trade receivables factoring”)
with financial institutions. Under certain trade receivables
factoring agreements, the Group is not required to bear
the risk of default and delay in repayment of the debtors
after the transfer of trade receivables and all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the transferred trade receivables.
The condition of derecognition of financial assets is met.
The Group derecognises the trade receivables under
such factoring agreements at their carrying amounts. As
at 30 June 2022, the carrying amount of trade receivables
transferred under the relevant factoring agreements
was RMB10,799,944 thousand (31 December 2021:
RMB20,227,834 thousand), and the loss related to
derecognition was RMB11,267 thousand (31 December
2021. RMB88,765 thousand), which was recorded in
investment loss.

As at 30 June 2022, the top five trade receivables amounts
are as follows:

B 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-_FXA=1H
RMB'000 AREET T

FE W AR ()

AEBTEHREBTRCHRET KBS
FEUWRRAEERES B ETSREE
B R MR BT 37 MR B R Y FE IR IR IR 173
FZ(ATHEERERRE]) - £5 TRIK
BRRRERET @ NEETHZAERUER
mqsg?éa@w%/\@%m B FNAE IR 8 R
LA K B #8574 WK BR SR ET B W 2 BT Y [ELFR
HRE - FESBMEERIEERIEH  A&EE
HZREHE THREIRZIZBRAEER
IR - R —FNA=+BEHBRE
ETEEENEMEREAEEAARE
10,799,944 F L (ZZE=Z—F+=ZA=+—
B : AR¥20,227,834F7T) » BEK R
HEMBEXRAARE11 267 TR (=2 ——
F+-ZA=+—H: AR¥88,765F L) °
TAREIEK -

RZEBE-_—_FXA=+8 ERERSHEN
AW :

Percentage

Provision of total trade

for bad receivables

Amount debts (%)
1 U BR X

TH BEREFESHE LEWLH(%)

The largest customer in balance of
trade receivables

The second largest customer in JEWBRRARBE AT

balance of trade receivables
The third largest customer in

balance of trade receivables
The fourth largest customer in

balance of trade receivables

The fifth largest customer in JEWBR R ARBERARF

balance of trade receivables

FEW SRR E —AEP

EUERFBBE=ATP

FEW R R AEE IR TP

1,045,351 2,195 2.65
984,781 5,219 2.49
951,196 2,827 2.41
898,450 163,544 2.27
739,736 1,554 1.87

4,619,514 175,339 11.69
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30 June 2022
—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

9.

10.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 9.

As at 31 December 2021, the top five trade receivables

FE W BR X (4&)
RZZEZ—F+ZRA=+—H EREXS

amounts are as follows: FAIARWT -
Percentage
Provision  of total trade
for bad receivables
Amount debts (%)
1 FEU AR R
TR ERERSTE BENLH(%)
The largest customer in balance of  EUWBRZKFBEE —RKEF 1,681,861 3,018 4.38
trade receivables
The second largest customer in EUBR BB E AR F 1,004,093 90,244 2.61
balance of trade receivables
The third largest customer in JEWBRRABEE=AE P 909,654 1,946 2.37
balance of trade receivables
The fourth largest customer in JEUBR R AR E AR P 774,734 36,556 2.02
balance of trade receivables
The fifth largest customer in JENER N BMEEERAAE 652,613 18,863 1.70
balance of trade receivables
5,022,955 150,627 13.08
BILLS PAYABLES 10. ENFEH
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
=== —E-—4F
ANAB=+H +=-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REET) (&)
Commercial acceptance bills PEAHIEE 1,219,770 609,650
Bank acceptance bills SRITAGIESE 1,727,186 6,721,809
2,946,956 7,331,459

As at 30 June 2022, the outstanding balance of notes
payable due was RMB17,783 thousand (31 December

2021: RMB20,330 thousand).

R-ZE-—HFXA=+H8  JHRGHOERS
DEMEAARE17,783F L (ZE=-—4F
+=A=+—H: AR¥20,330F ) °
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B 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—T-FXA=+H
RMB'000 ARBFT
TRADE PAYABLES 1. ERERX
The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: ENERFHERI AT
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
AA=+H +-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBEET) (#FsT)
Within one year 1A 92,335,136 72,474,615
110 2 years 1FE2F 305,197 269,207
2 to 3 years 2FE3F 296,071 212,844
Over 3 years 3FLAE 151,582 203,501
93,087,986 73,160,167
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are FENBEZ LB - W E A RS o
normally settled within six months.
As at 30 June 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group had RNoE-——EXA=+tAR-—E—-—&E+—
no significant trade payables aged over one year. B=+—\0 AEEEELBBIEHEE
JERTBRR
SHARE CAPITAL 12. B&

The registered and paid-in capital of the Company is
analysed as follows:

AR REEM R BRI T -

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

—E_— —E-—4F

ARA=tH +ZHA=+—8H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REE) (& &|ET)

Registered and paid-in capital ER PSSRl 2,911,143 2,911,143
Nominal value per share SREE 1 yuan 1 yuan
17T 17T
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30 June 2022
—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

12. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 12. RA&R(E)
The class and structure of shares are as follows: M EEREEBENT
30 June 2022 (Unaudited) “EFXAZ=1TH (GREER)

Number of shares increased
(decreased) in the year

ARER R R
Number

of shares Number
at the of shares
beginning Non-public at the end
of the year offering Others of the year
FORE E NS Hity ERRE

Restricted shares BREKERR
Shares held by domestic natural BHNEARANER 658,084,620 - (9,706,369) 648,378,251

persons

Total restricted shares BREKERRD AR 658,084,620 - (9,706,369) 648,378,251

Non-restricted shares ERERERH
RMB ordinary shares ARBLRER 1,155,058,235 - 9,706,369 1,164,764,604
Foreign shares listed overseas SN ETRIINE BR 1,098,000,000 - - 1,098,000,000
Total non-restricted shares BREEERH A 2,253,058,235 - 9,706,369  2,262,764,604

Total number of shares Pt 2,911,142,855 - - 2,911,142,855




12. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

31 December 2021 (Audited)
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B RSER AR M EE

30 June 2022
—E-—FNRA=1+H
RMB'000 AREET T
12. RA&R(E)
B —F+-A=+—0(LF:T)

Number of shares increased
(decreased) in the year

AEL ) RE
Number

of shares Number
at the of shares
beginning Non-public at the end
of the year offering Others of the year
FURY FRFET Hith FRERE

Restricted shares BREGHRR
Shares held by domestic natural BHNERANER 667,149,897 - (9,065,277) 658,084,620

persons

Total restricted shares BREGERHA 667,149,897 - (9,065,277) 658,084,620

Non-restricted shares BREKERD
RMB ordinary shares AR L B 1,145,992,958 - 9,065,277  1,155,058,235
Foreign shares listed overseas B ERINER 915,000,000 183,000,000 - 1,098,000,000
Total non-restricted shares BREGHRDEE 2,060,992,958 183,000,000 9,065,277  2,253,058,235
Total number of shares Bt 2,728,142,855 183,000,000 - 2,911,142,855
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30 June 2022
—E-—FRA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 13. ROXf

1. Overview 1.

Equity-settled share-based payments are as follows:

R
MR R M AT

30 June 31 December

2022 2021
=== —E-—F
AB=+tH +tZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REGET) (g&F|at)
Accumulated balance of equity-settled  AEREE MDD X F5HA 241,749 190,687
share-based payments credited to BRNEN R AT
capital reserve
Total expenses recognised for KHFLAE A ERRGD 51,062 116,389
equity-settled share-based payments SRERNERRE
in the Period/year
2, Share-based payment plan 2, IR 13 5T &l

On 10 May 2021 and 16 June 2021, the Company
convened the 11th meeting of the seventh session
of the Board and the extraordinary general
meeting, respectively, at which the Resolution
on the Proposed Implementation of the Equity
Incentive Scheme of BYD Semiconductor Company
Limited was considered and approved, and the
adoption of the 2020 Share Option Incentive
Scheme of BYD Semiconductor Company Limited
(the “Subsidiary Share Option Scheme”) was
approved. The Subsidiary Share Option Scheme
granted 33,088,200 share options to 36 incentive
participants including directors (excluding
independent non-executive directors), senior
management and core personnel (excluding
supervisors) of BYD Semiconductor, representing
7.353% of the then registered capital of BYD
Semiconductor.

—;—7£E£H+El&—?— FIR
A+7<H KRN HBERFELESE
E- ) N &Q;%&Eﬁa—%ﬂﬁ%jtﬁ '
ERBAT (AN B EERD
B R A R E e AR s B & 8 A %
=) HERME RS EERnE
PRARZT T FIRE B RE
([ FRrIRESRETS]) - F2
AR B M B IE L i B
MEE(TEEBIYIIERTESE)

BREREAE - ZLBBAES (BT
BIEEE) TN EMEYSRET
3308.82F {5 A BAME - (5 Lk B
BRERIMEARNLLLHR7.353% ©
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13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.

Share-based payment plan (continued)

The Share Options granted under the Subsidiary
Share Option Scheme shall be exercised in three
tranches, and the corresponding vesting periods
shall be 24 months, 36 months and 48 months
from the Date of Grant, respectively. The share
options granted shall commence from the date of
grant and shall be exercised in tranches during
the following three exercise periods. For the first,
second and third exercise periods, 30%, 30% and
40% of the share options are exercisable subject
to the satisfaction of performance conditions. The
exercise price is RMB5 per share. Options which fail
to obtain the right to exercise due to failure to meet
the performance conditions or those which have not
been exercised in the current period after the end of
the exercise period shall become null and void and
be repurchased without consideration and cancelled
by BYD Semiconductor.

Performance indicators for the exercise of
share options include:

(1) Revenue from operations;

(2) Net profit.

B 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-—FNRA=1+H
RMB'000 AREET T

13. BRH X (&)

2.

B4 < ST 8 (&)

AORF A mI AR B A R B T &0 iR A
HAED = RATHE - HEMESHS R
ABEETHE24A - 361EA - 48
AR -BRPHRERENKTAHA
W BB =BT D RITHE -
F— B -_ME=ZEATERD A
30% ~ 30% - 40% R EAETE M R 24
B RTIR TS ATATHE BV BRI o 1742
BISASTTARKE B AmEEE
R MR ESITREN A&
TTHERRAE R 1B B AR 1T RE RO DR A HA A
ASSZZMERE - L Enim SR mE R
B AT — T8 ©

BERETENRGEERE
ECE

(1) EEIWA

(2) FEFE o
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30 June 2022
—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 13. R X[ (&)
2. Share-based payment plan (continued) 2. B3 35T 8 (4E)
Specific conditions for each exercise period of the RYHRERESTERARNITENA
Share Options granted: BRAGME -
Exercise
Exercise period proportion Exercise time Exercise conditions
TREHR TRELL I TRERER TREMRAF
First exercise period 30% 2022.5.12- The growth rate of revenue and
(“Phase 1”) 2023.5.11 net profit for the accounting
year prior to the exercise date
of the first exercise period
shall not be less than 20% as
compared with the previous
year
FE— AT FE—ATTHEEAR T R A — &5t F
([—H#11) EREERATENER E—F
EEIERENER20%
Second exercise period 30% 2023.5.12- The growth rate of operating
(“Phase 11") 2024.5.11 revenue and net profit for the
accounting year prior to the
exercise date of the second
exercise period shall not be
less than 20% as compared
with the previous year
8B {ETHEH BT ITRE B A — Rt
(TE5=81) EHEERAFFEFER E—4
EH IR R EAMER20%
Third exercise period 40% 2024.5.12- The growth rate of operating
(“Phase 111") 2025.5.12 revenue and net profit for

E =BT
(I1E=8#1)

the accounting year prior to

the exercise date of the third
exercise period shall not be

less than 20% as compared

with the previous year

FETRARITRAA &5 F

&6 U AFNF A B8 = —F
[ 838 R R TMER20%
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13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.

B 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-—FNRA=1+H
RMB'000 AREET T

13. BRH X (&)

Share-based payment plan (continued) 2. B3 35T 8 (4E)
The appraised value of the equity-settled share BRTHAERGEE N RERENTG
options granted was RMB337,098 thousand. Among BEAARES337,008F L« EFA
them, the Group recognised a share option expense SERAEERANRERAEEZRAAA
of RMB51,062 thousand in the Period (January to R¥51,062F (ZEZ—F—EX
June 2021: RMB57,716). The appraised value of A+ AR¥57,71670) » BIEHER
the Share Options on the Date of Grant is estimated ETHOFHER  FAZBEAR
using the binomial model, taking into account the Bl AR T RE B OV IR R R
terms and conditions upon which the Share Options % YEEET o TRYIR T FTAER
were granted. The following table lists the input A2
variables to the model used:
(Phase I) (Phase Il) (Phase lll)
Exercise period 1THEHR %—H #F_H =4
Expected volatility TEET R Eh 52.80% 51.99% 57.88%
Risk-free interest rate [ N 1.60% 1.81% 2.02%

Expected volatility is an assumption based
on the future trend reflected by historical
volatility, and hence may not be the actual
result. No other feature of the options granted
was incorporated into the measurement of
fair value.

IR B R EERNE LIRE X
RERBR R BBERE - B
TTA—ERERNER - 2f
EBEREZRAETRIERED
HARrAL o
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—E-—FRA=1+H
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13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
2. Share-based payment plan (continued)

Pursuant to the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme,
if the Company is converted into a joint stock
company, the number and exercise price of the
share options will be adjusted according to the
proportion of the number of shares after the
conversion. On 3 December 2020, the first session
of the board of directors of BYD Semiconductor
passed the Resolution in relation to the Company’s
Adjustment on the 2020 Share Option Incentive
Scheme and the Implementation, Assessment
and Management Measures of the Share Option
Incentive Scheme (BIRFAR AR S T FiR#EH
M EN A B FIAE BB B B E R E IR IOEN S
22)), which adjusted the First Share Option Incentive
Scheme implemented by BYD Semiconductor Co.,
Ltd. The resolution changed the number of share
options granted to employees from “30,019,760" to
“33,088,235" and the exercise price of the share
options from “RMB5.00/per yuan” to “RMB4.54/
per share” according to the movement in the
percentage of shares converted based on the
BYD Semiconductor conversion into a joint stock
company.

13.

R A0 214 (4&)

2.

B4 < ST 8 (&)

F R AR BT S 4 T 0 A Jl Bkl
BIRMHRT] - ERERR G $ 2612 5
e Pl ST B E S = RITRERE
THAE - _T-_FTEF+_-_/F=H
Mt EEE - EEEEREBE
BTCRARARERR T T FRE
BB AT I AR B BB AT B
HEZERIENESR)  ZaRd
b EEER AT ERNE AR
HEORENETEETT T AR - ZARBE
Lt 25 580~ 5 B8 A% 1) Il 2 ] O AR B
LB R TFEINRESERER
[30,019,76017 | & ¥ %[ 33,088,235
B W B fTREE BB 5.00
T BITHE | E#E RI4.54
Fh] -
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities arising from pending litigation
or arbitration and its financial impact

Action against Foxconn

On 11 June 2007, a Hong Kong High Court (the “Court”)
action (the “June 2007 Action”) was commenced by a
subsidiary of Foxconn International Holdings Limited
and a company jointly controlled by its ultimate holding
company (the “Plaintiffs”) against the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Group (the “Defendants”) for using
confidential information alleged to have been obtained
improperly from the Plaintiffs. The Plaintiffs discontinued
the June 2007 Action on 5 October 2007 without any
liability to the Defendants. On the same day, the Plaintiffs
initiated a new set of legal proceedings in the Hong Kong
High Court (the “October 2007 Action”). The Defendants
named in the October 2007 Action are the same as the
Defendants in the June 2007 Action, and the claims made
by the Plaintiffs in the October 2007 Action are based
on the same facts and grounds in the June 2007 Action.
The remedies sought by the Plaintiffs in the October 2007
Action include an injunction restraining the Defendants
from using the alleged confidential information, an order
for the disgorgement of profit made by the Defendants
through the use of the confidential information, damages
based on the loss suffered by the Plaintiffs and exemplary
damages. The total damages sought by the Plaintiffs in
the October 2007 Action have not been quantified. On 2
October 2009, the Defendants instituted a counter-action
against Foxconn International Holdings Limited and certain
of its subsidiaries for their intervention, by means of illegal
in the operations involving the Company and
certain of its subsidiaries, collusion, written and verbal
defamation, and the economic loss as a result of the said

measures,

activities since 2006.

As at the reporting date, the case remains in the process
of legal proceedings. With the assistance of the legal
adviser responsible for the case on behalf of the Company,
the Board is of the view that the estimate ultimate outcome
and amount to settle the obligation, if any, of the litigation
cannot be made reliably up to date.

14.

B 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-_FXA=1H
RMB'000 AREET T
HEEE
RRFARBIFBEANIEEEREYTH
EA-
&1L EFRAS

R-ZZEZLFRA+—H  BLrRERER
E@ AET—ETEBFAR KR —fH8EHER
REZERABDENNAR (RE]) WE
@mﬁﬁhﬂi&J)Eﬁﬁmﬁ_if
FRAFR]D  ERARRRAEEETT
%%@ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂ)ﬁ%hﬁ@%%ﬁ#%
ESHORZER RECR_ZZTLFTH
FRBRIEZZEZLERNANRD  HEREN
—ETELFEXNAFDREEAE - ARZF
MARHASWERETFAEET - FAB - RER
BEREERRENR —WHERERF ([ =
ZRHFE+AFRD - _FTEF+AFR
SR - TR FRNAFRIRERR
AREE—_FTEF+ARRPRINER
BER-_ZZLFXNAFATHERFTER
BhH - REE_ZETLF T AFRTIREN
MR ERRBRSELINEERERAREER
B R ERHEERERER &SN
FEARFEREEZNIBE RIS
FES REE_ZTELFTAFAPIR
WEECRSERAREE - —TZNFTA
TH O REHELRBBRERAERARRE
RUMBFRARERNRE  HZERFB
ERRFURFNBIAAEFRTHARARER
ERFARMNEE HFTR EEKAE
- BEUSEIRRNIT RIRERAABE R ©

BEARER  REMHDEFLERFD - &
RERRBEEZRFHEZEZBERHET
EEeRR RFRNRRERLEBERD
(a7 ) TeEmI SERYfAEL ©
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30 June 2022
—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

14.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 14. REEE (@)
The contingent liabilities arising from the guarantee REBERHEREANOEEEREMBY
provided by the Group and its financial impact are as 2R
follows:
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—E-—F T4
AH=tH +=ZA=+—H
(unaudited) (audited)
(REEES) (4 |ET)
Guarantees that the Company can provide  ti¥ T FRARIM B EESMETT 106,288,723 104,692,731
to banks for financing granted to RHMER
subsidiaries

106,288,723 104,692,731

As at 30 June 2022, the actual guarantees provided by
the Company for its subsidiaries and related parties were
RMB31,821,132 thousand and RMB8,073,224 thousand
(31 December 2021: RMB26,780,940 thousand and
RMB3,706,128 thousand).

R-ZEBE-_—_FA=1TH XQAAAHE
FRAIRBABFERRENERABAR
#31,821,132F T AR%8,073,224F
T(ZE-—F+-_A=+—8: ARK
26,780,940 F LR AR 3,706,128 F L) °
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15.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The Group entered into cooperation contracts and
documents with certain customers (including end
customers) and third parties or related financial institutions.
According to the arrangements of the relevant cooperation
contracts and documents, the Company undertakes
repurchase obligations to these financial institutions. If a
customer defaults or specific conditions stipulated in the
contract occur, the Company inherits all the creditor’s
rights and related interests, and has the right to take
relief measures such as recovery and sale of new energy
vehicles to repay the remaining debts owed by the
customer to the financing institution, and reserves the
right to claim the remaining creditor’s rights. Management
believes that the recovered assets can be sold, and the
proceeds of the sale will basically cover the remaining
arrears to the financing institutions. As at 30 June 2022,
the Group’s maximum exposure to these obligations
was RMB4,766,512 thousand (31 December 2021:
RMB®6,409,637 thousand), and there was no customer
default or specific conditions as stipulated in the contracts
which the Company was required to make any payment.

The Group recognised a loss allowance of RMB14,035

thousand (2021: RMB14,035 thousand) for financial
guarantee contracts based on expected credit losses.

COMMITMENTS

14.

15.

B 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-_FXA=1H
RMB'000 AREET T

FHEE (F)

AEEHFERS (FRIERP) RE=ZFHK
BB ERERITAEAR R - RIEME
BEEARENXHNZH ARRAZSE
BHBEAELBES  BRPENNELES
B4 E B RFE -1 - RNRE A EERL
RAAREZ - WHREATRIUKE I ZE 5
BERAEERUERN  LENEPHEEK
R RIS R IR WIRE AT 4 TR RS
BREBEITEROESN - EEERAE - REH
BERNEE MEBEWRAERENL Y
BMERENFRGRK BE_T-__FXA
=+H AEBEHZEEBHRABOAA
R#¥4766,512F Lt (ZE=Z—F+=A=+
—H : AR#6,409,637F L) BARBAR
BERPENNERNENFEGREMS AT
EF UL RRIBERNER

AEEBENTEBRERBRAER  HHBKER
ARETRERBETRRBREFARE
14,035F L (=T =—F : AR¥14,035F
JT) °

AHER

30 June
2022
—E=_=
AH=T+H
(unaudited)
(RE&ES)

31 December
2021
T4
+-A=+—8H
(audited)

(g F|ET)

Contracted, but not provided for
Capital commitments
Investment commitments

BELEREHE
B AEGE
B A

34,866,912
876,542

21,094,499
892,582

35,743,454

21,987,081
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30 June 2022

=

16.

FRA=TAH
RMB'000 AR#FT
RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 16. BHXZ
(1) Related party transactions of goods and (1) BEIERREBERS

services

Sales of goods and rendering of services to related

A BB 77 5 6 A mm SR AR (R 85 75

parties
January-June January-June
2022 2021
ZECCE-ERR CEC-F-E5f
Details of transactions (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
BEQSMA (REET) (RiE&E:T)
Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive Co., Lid. Sales of goods and rendering of services 240,971 580,114
MIEZAERAEERAT HER R AT
Tianjin BYD Automobile Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services 191 2,19
REN DR TERRAT HEBRNRES
Shenzhen BYD Electric Vehicle Investment Co., Ltd. and its Subsidiaries Sales of goods and rendering of services 10,510 5,820
ML DREY T BRAERAAREFAA HEBRARRS
Shenzhen BYD International Financial Lease Co., Ltd. Rendering of services 13 33
Atz eBRRARERRAA RUBH
BYD Auto Finance Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services 206,856 60,666
LEENELBARAT HEBRNRES
Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services 439 12,766
MBS SRR ERAA HEBRNRES
Guangzhou Guang Qi BYD New Energy Bus Co., Lid. Sales of goods and rendering of services 2,723 329,253
BRI B REEERAR HEBRNRES
Shenzhen Didi New Energy Vehicle Technology Co., Ltd. and its Subsidiaries Sales of goods and rendering of services 4,599 49,09
TR R ENRERAARATFRA HEBRNRES
Shenzhen Energy Sales & Service Co., Ltd. and its Subsidiaries Sales of goods and rendering of services 1,814 5,981
RERMAEEERAARETAR HEBRARRS
Xi'an Infrastructure Yadi Automobile Service Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services 17 18
ERiR T E R ARE LA HEBRARHESH
Shenzhen Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries Sales of goods and rendering of services 155,944 101,224
AIGETERERAARETFAR HEBRNRESH
Shenzhen UBTECH Robotics Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services 240 308
MTELSEMERERAR HEBRARESH
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[ r—

30 June 2022
FRA=1H

RMB'000 AREET T

16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 16. BEXS (&)
(CONTINUED)

(1)

Related party transactions of goods and 1) BEIFERRZERS (H)

services (continued)

Sales of goods and rendering of services to related

parties (continued)

) B 7 SH 6 P AR 8575 (4D

January-June January-June
2022 2021
S8ZE-ERR CTO-E-ERA
Details of transactions (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
PG (RiEET) (RiEgs)
Beijing Hualin Loading Co., Ltd. Sales of goods 367 15,580
FRERRRERRAT HEEm
Yinchuan Sky Rail Operation Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services - 6,449
RIEHELERAT HEBRNRESH
Tianjin Hongdi Financial Lease Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services 39 35,422
RETEHEREERAA HEERAR LT
Meihao Travel (Hangzhou) Automotive Technology Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services 26,246 1,591,222
FIFHAT () R ERAA HEBRNRESH
BYD TOYOTA EV Technology Co., Lid. Sales of goods and rendering of services 1,249 1,428
HEHEREHENRARLT HEERAR LT
Dongguan Tec-Rich Engineering Co., Ltd. Rendering of services 6 4
RETERREREERAT RHEH
Youngy Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services 9 1
BERAEREEERLA HEERARHST
ONYX International inc. Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services 752 1,698
BIXAESHEARAA HEBRNRRSE
Shenzhen Zhengxuan Prospective Venture Capital Co., Ltd. Sales of goods - 5
MM ISHEIRERRAT HEER
Shenzhen Microgrid Digital Technology Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services 9,849 -
RTHESENRERAT HEBRARRSE
Shenzhen Dipai Zhixing Technology Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services 330 -
RTEERTHEERAT HEBRARESTE
663,164 2,199,217
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30 June 2022

—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 16. BHRXS (&)
(CONTINUED)

(1)

Related party transactions of goods and (1)

services (continued)

Purchase of goods and accepting service from

related parties

BErEmRkEBRS (F)

IF) B Bk 77 BRI 7 dn AR X2 8575

January-June January-June
2022 2021
“B-CE-ZRR “E--£-F5A
Details of transactions (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
BERARE (RE%ET) (REEs)
Tianjin BYD Automobile Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods and accepting service 15,596 213
RN EERERRAT FERRNETER
Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods and accepting service 190 231
RIEZHERAEERAA REARIERSH
Beijing Easpring Material Technology Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods - 190,615
PREATHBERRAERAR REBR
Guangzhou Guang Qi BYD New Energy Bus Co., Lid. Purchase of goods and accepting service 29,428 385,824
MBS B AR ERRAT REARNERSH
Shenzhen Energy Sales & Service Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries Accepting service 5 3,809
REFHAEEARARRATAT BX5H
BYD Auto Finance Co., Lid. Accepting service 188,200 93,466
HEETEERARAT ER5H
Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co. Ltd Accepting service 325 208
RAEA R R E AR AT BX5H
Shenzhen Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries Purchase of goods 2,362,462 974,018

MIFEE I ARARETAT

ReEn
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16.

16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
1) Related party transactions of goods and

services (continued)

Purchase of goods and accepting serv
related parties (continued)

ice from

B RSER AR M EE

30 June 2022
—E-—FNRA=1+H
RMB'000 AREET T

M5 ()
(1) BBRIERRZBEXS (H)

A B T SR R m R R 85 7% ()

January-June January-June
2022 2021
ZECCE-ERR CEC-EF-E5A
Details of transactions (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
B Ana (ReE&:T) (RiEEs)
Shenzhen BYD Electric Vehicle Investment Co., Ltd. and its Subsidiaries Accepting service and purchase of fuel and 1,381 1,438
power such as water, electricity and gas
R D EEDAEREERAIRETAA EXSBREEKSRASHEAD )
Chengdu Youngy Lithium Technology Co., Ltd Purchase of goods 86,137 -
HARREENEERAR FEER
Sichuan Changhe Huali Technology Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods 202,028 97,026
B RHEERRARLA REER
Dongguan Tec-Rich Engineering Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods 144 284
RETERRIREERAT FEER
Shenzhen Pagoda Industrial (Group) Corporation Limited Purchase of goods - 139
RIEREEE (£B)ROBRAA REER
2,885,896 1,747,331
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30 June 2022
—E-FXA=1+H
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16.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 16.

(CONTINUED)
(2) Leases with related parties

As lessees

January-June 2022 (Unaudited)

BB S (&)

(2) BEAIEE
EAAT A

—ECF-ERA CREER)

Lease
payments for Variable
short-term lease
leases and payments
leases of  not included
low-value in the Interest
Type of assets with  measurement expenses  Additions to
leased simplified of lease  Rental  onlease right-of-use
assets approach liabilities paid liabilities assets
EEEEN
BRAEN KA
BEEELE HEER RED
HEEE HE® TENTE XM HEEE e
BE HEEA HEATE e REXE  RAREE
Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. Housing - - 1,666 111 -
MAERE e R EERAF EE
Tianjin BYD Automobile Co., Ltd. Housing = = 733 78 =
RELTEAEERAT EE
Xi'an Infrastructure Yadi Automobile Service Co., Ltd. Equipment - - 19 - -
BERNR TR EREERELAR R
- - 2418 189 -
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16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 16. BEXZ (&)
(2) Leases with related parties (continued) (2) EAWHHEE(FE)
As lessees (continued) EREMA (8)
January-June 2021 (Unaudited) ZE=—F—EA CGREERD)
Lease
payments for Variable
short-term lease
leases and payments
leases of  not included
low-value in the Interest
Type of assets with  measurement expenses  Additions to
leased simplified of lease  Rental  onlease  right-of-use
assets approach liabilities paid liabilities assets
e
BHEER KA
EBEEE HEaR AR
HEARE HER SRMEE XMAE  HERR e
BR BeER RERTE e  FExL  RREEE
Shenzhen BYD International Financial Lease Co., Ltd. Equipment 454,960 - 514,104 - -
A RERRAEEARAT R
Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. Housing - - 33N 213 -
MAERL EEH R ERRAA BE
Tianjin BYD Automobile Co., Ltd. Housing - - 1,274 120 -
RENTHEERAA BE
Xi'an Infrastructure Yadi Automobile Service Co., Ltd. Equipment - - 19 2 -
B R ERBERAEAR R
454,960 - 518,768 335 -
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16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 16. BEXZ (&)
(CONTINUED)
(3) Providing guarantees to related parties (3) HEAMSRMEER
Loan guarantees B RS
30 June 2022 (unaudited) ZEZZFRNA=HA CRESE)
Whether
Commencement Maturity guarantee
Guarantee date of date of has been
amount guarantee guarantee performed
EREE
BREE RRERA EREEA EiTz2
BYD Auto Finance Co., Ltd. 7,366,650 30 August 2021- 27 October 2022- No
24 June 2022 17 June 2026
HomAEeRERAR —B--F et St 2 &
NA=+HE TA=ttHZ
—B-CF —BIRE
AA=t+MA AATtA
Tianjin Hongdi Financial Lease Co., Ltd. 639,737 30 June 2022 N/A No
RELHBEREBRAR kSt 3 TER B
~A=1H
China Metallurgical New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. 58,750 11 January 2019 4 April 2030 No
IR AFTREREH AR D A ZE-NF “2-ZFNANA A&
—-A+-H
Hubei Energy Storage Co., Ltd. 8,087 1 February 2019 1 February 2026 No
[EEE B Ofd) BRAF “E2-hEZA-H Z—B-XE-A-H &
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16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 16. BEXZ (&)
(CONTINUED)
(3) Providing guarantees to related parties (3) HEAMSRMAER (F)
(continued)
Loan guarantees (continued) ERER (8)
31 December 2021 (audited) “ECF+ - A=+—H (KB
Whether
Commencement Maturity guarantee
Guarantee  date of date of has been
amount  guarantee guarantee performed
BREER
EReE ERERA ERIIEA Bi1TE
Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive Co., Ltd. 333,455 31 December 2021 N/A No
AYBE R TEBRAT it S 3 @R A
+-A=+-H
BYD Auto Finance Co., Ltd. 2,495,000 28 January 2021- 27 October 2022-  No
27 October 2021 27 October 2025
WEEAESRARAR —I--F e St 3 &
—RZ+NRAZ R =k
T “T-hF
+A=-++H +H=t++H
Tianjin Hongdi Financial Lease Co., Ltd. 807,358 31 December 2021 N/A No
KERAEMEREFRAA —E-—F TEA &
+-A=+-H
China Metallurgical New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. 60,000 11 January 2019 11 January 2025 No
ORI AFRERRHR AR A A —Z-NF “T-RF &
—A+—H —A+—H
Hubei Energy Storage Co., Ltd. 10,315 1 February 2019 1 February 2026 No

AR E (L) BRAR

—T-NFZA—H

- RFZA-H

I~
[=]




90

BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAE

Notes to Financial Statements

Br 75 R R B

30 June 2022

—E-FXA=1+H
RMB'000 AREETIT

16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 16. BEXS (&)
(CONTINUED)

(4)

Transfer of related parties assets

(4) BBRHIEEESR

January-June

January-June

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—-fF

—25%xA —&7A

Transaction content (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

RHNE (REET) (RE=EH)

Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive Co., Ltd.  Disposal of fixed assets 5,100 -
RYBE IR AEERAT HERTEE

Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. Disposal of fixed assets 61 -
MNP e R B BRAF HEETERE

Shenzhen Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. Disposal of fixed assets - 2,148
RBEEAEBHARLA HERTEE

Dongguan Tec-Rich Engineering Co., Ltd. Purchase of fixed assets 66,163 29
REMEHEHERXBHERAR RBETEE

Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. Purchase of fixed assets 5,422 -
MBS B EBRAR RBETEE

76,746 2,177
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RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(6)

Others

16.

()

January-June

Hito

B RSER AR M EE

30 June 2022
—E-—FNRA=1+H
RMB'000 AREET T

BB S (&)

January-June

2022 2021

—E-—F —ET-—%F

—ZEXH —&ExA

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RE&ES) (Regs)

Key Management Compensation AR EIE A B3 35,791 28,462

Notes:

(M

Transactions with related parties: During the
Period, the Group conducted transactions with
related parties based on market prices.

As of 30 June 2022, Beijing Easpring Material
Technology Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Pagoda
Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. no longer constitute
related parties of the Group.

Assets transfer of related parties

The pricing principle of the Group’s sale and
purchase of fixed assets to and from related
parties during the year was determined based
on the market price.

HIE

M

2)

(3)

HETEMR S  AAEE
VATH 5 (8 A 2t BR R Bt 05 7T
Eam 5 °

BHE-_Z-_—F<A=+H"
EREAMBREROBRA
AERNEREEE (£8) K
MABERARDTERASEEH
Bt o

BT B EEE
AEERFRMB T HE B

BEEEEENRSEBRANK
EMISEREE
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16.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(6)

Others (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(4)

Repurchase obligation

The Group entered into cooperation contracts
and documents with certain related parties and
third parties or related financing institutions.
According to the arrangements of the relevant
cooperation contracts and documents, the
Company undertakes the repurchase obligations
to these financing institutions. If the related
parties violate the specific conditions stipulated
in the contracts or agreements, the Company
inherits all the creditor’'s rights and relevant
rights and interests, and has the right to take
recovery and sale of new energy vehicles and
other relief measures on its own to repay the
remaining arrears owed by the customers to the
financing institutions, and reserves the right to
pursue recourse for the balance of the creditor’s
rights if the proceeds from sales are insufficient
to repay the remaining arrears. Management is
of the opinion that the repossessed assets will
be able to be realised and the proceeds from
the sales will be able to settle the outstanding
amounts due to the financial institutions. As at
30 June 2022, there was no default of related
parties or specific conditions agreed in the
contract that required the Company to make
payments.

a. As at 30 June 2022, the Company’s
maximum exposure of such obligations
to Shenzhen Didi New Energy
Vehicle Technology Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries was RMB738,329 thousand

(31 December 2021: RMB961,110
thousand).
b. As at 30 June 2022, the Company’s

maximum exposure of such obligations
to Youngy Co., Ltd. was RMB21,938
thousand (31 December 2021:
RMB32,412 thousand).

16.

BB S (&)

()

Ht (%)

T (8)

(4) (ol {5 & 7%
AEBHELOEB T RE=T

B RERBRITAEAR
Rt - RIBHEBEEEAR R
XHE R ARERZER
EWBRENBERY - BRI
TEROEXARHENEE
flett - AR B AR BN
KiEEEz - YA EBITRR
Yo 120 30 54 5 ¥ BE IR 0T B S RO
e AENEFPYHRERE
MRBRRF - TREERNEE

WA RAEN R R R ERE
ERERHE

ﬁkﬁm%ﬁ°£@ﬁ
2 A W@méé s
é%%%ﬂ%k%o@é:%
TCFERA=TH RBAEH

ﬁLﬁ&AHﬁmm%mﬁ
M ARBNFIENER

a. HE-Z-—_#,A=
+8 - AR ERIIm
mEH R IERRA
PRARRETFABZ
ERBHHERAMEAA
R¥738,329F £ (=
E-_—F+_A=1+—
H: AR#¥961,110F
TT) °

b. HE-—ZEZ-_—FxA=
+ B - RARQAE R
BHERRAZER
HRRAMOBARE
21,938 F L (ZE = —
F+ZA=+—H8: A
R¥32,412F L) »
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BB S (&)

(CONTINUED)
(6) Balance of related parties receivables (6)  BAHETS FEWCRIEEAEE
30 June 2022 31 December 2021
ZBIZERAZTA -+ ZA=1+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REE:T) (fE#3t)
Provision Provision
Book for Book for
balance  bad debts balance  had debts
RESE  BREE  RERE EREE
Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive Co., Ltd. RIIEZFERAEERLA - - 15,084 80
Tianjin BYD Automobile Co., Ltd. RN D@ TEERAA 747,091 20,748 763,201 18,863
Shan Mei Ling Qiu Bi Xing Industry Development  IWEBEHEEEREERAF 8,500 8,500 8,500 8,500
Co., Ltd.
BYD Auto Finance Co., Ltd. L EEAESRARRA 123,474 20 140,889 732
Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. MNER L B R T EARAR 23,917 15,267 26,236 15,207
Guangzhou Guang Qi BYD New Energy Bus BNE A EF R EBR AT 900,818 164,283 1,006,486 90,712
Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Hongdi Financial Lease Co., Ltd. RELERERERRAR 546 23 541 23
Beijing Hualin Loading Co., Ltd EREREREFRAT 35,035 314 38,020 280
Dongguan Tec-Rich Engineering Co., Ltd. REMERETREFRAR 196,585 - 171,059 -
Shenzhen Dipai Zhixing Technology Co., Ltd. MRS THEERAR 371 8 - -
Shenzhen BYD Electric Vehicle Investment Co., Ltd. FYIt BT 852 REAR AL 546 - - -

and its Subsidiaries

Yinchuan Sky Rail Operation Co., Ltd.

EFRA
B ENELARLA

33,358 33,358

33,358 33,358

Shenzhen Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. and  FIIBE S AEBHARAR R 160,946 3,272 100,613 2,047
its Subsidiaries RN
Shenzhen BYD International Leasing Co., Ltd. A EaERREREERAR 3,466 367 3,466 274
Shenzhen Didi New Energy Vehicle Technology ~ FITibBee RSB RAARL AR 18,062 13,180 16,627 6,428
Co., Ltd. and its Subsidiaries SN
Shenzhen Energy Sales & Service Co., Ltd. and ~ FEERREEERAGIRETAH 24 = - -
its subsidiaries
Sichuan Changhe Huali Technology Co., Ltd. M RAEDRHRBRAA - - 49,006 -
BYD TOYOTA EV Technology Co., Ltd. e AESERHBRAT 804 4 424 2
Meihao Travel (Hangzhou) Automotive Technology 717 (M) REMBAR AT 6,573 36 164,826 879
Co., Ltd.
2,260,116 259,380 2,538,336 177,385
The amounts due from related parties are interest- RN B 5 SR TR AE - B

free, unsecured and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

- BEEEER

HR o
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16.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 16.

BB S (&)

(CONTINUED)
(7) Balance of related parties payables (7) BAEESEERRIEEREE
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—EB-CE “E-—F
AA=TH tZA=1+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(K& (f5st)
Shenzhen BYD International Leasing Co., Ltd. R R EEERR AT 93,214 93,214
Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive Co., Ltd. AEEFERTEERAF - 51,859
Tianjin BYD Automobile Co., Ltd. RERG#ABEERAR 35,217 26,335
Shenzhen Energy Sales & Service Co., Ltd. and REEREEEERAGRETFAH 1,308 1,374
its Subsidiaries
BYD Auto Finance Co., Ltd. ttﬁ?é‘mﬁﬁﬂﬁ [ﬂi"* 4 64
Beijing Easpring Material Technology Co., Ltd. EREAMHR R - 83,976
Guangzhou Guang Qi BYD New Energy Bus Co., Ltd. &S s mﬁ%%‘ E NS 314,088 342,926
Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. MM E ML e TE AR A E 7,346 4,706
Shenzhen BYD Electric Vehicle Investment Co., Ltd. R CAEE AEREBR AR RETAF 21,126 19,158
and its Subsidiaries
Dongguan Tec-Rich Engineering Co., Ltd. RrmERREREERAT 34,180 12,827
Shenzhen Microgrid Digital Technology Co., Ltd. RYTHEHERZERAA 855 -
Chengdu Youngy Lithium Technology Co., Ltd K RREERBERAA 86,137 -
Shenzhen Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. and FNGELSESHERRAFAREFATF 1,323,104 994,311
its Subsidiaries
Shenzhen UBTECH Robotics Co., Ltd. ATELERERHERAR 174 174
Shenzhen Didi New Energy Vehicle Technology A mEERERAENRER A AR FAF 112 58
Co., Ltd. and its Subsidiaries
BYD TOYOTA EV Technology Co., Ltd. HEaEHEHERRERAR 99,468 98,599
Xi'an Infrastructure Yadi Automobile Service Co., Ltd. ~ EZHATHAERKERET AT - 19
Sichuan Changhe Huali Technology Co., Ltd. M RNEERRERAF 48,180 -
2,064,513 1,729,600
(8) Monetary funds deposited with related parties (8) TFHEBAINEKES
2022 2021
—E-CEF —E--F
BYD Auto Finance Co., Ltd. LA EERERAR 9,400,000 14,700,000
The annual interest rate of the above deposits for RNEA i R E R R ERPEARR
the current period is 3%-3.2% above the benchmark TRGHEBRTFRELENE EFA
interest rate published by the People’s Bank of 3%-3.2% (ZE=Z—FEF : 2.25%-

China for deposits of the same period (2021: 2.25%- 3%) °

3%).
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(1) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

30 June 2022 (Unaudited)

B 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-—FNRA=1+H
RMB'000 AREET T

(1) HUAAREEFENEENERS
ZEZFEXNA=ZTH (REE)

Fair value measurement using

AREBEFEFRNBAR

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

EEME BEY BEFT

HE BEWAR BR@AE
F-BX EZBR £ N &t
Financial assets held for trading RHMEREE - 1,431,944 - 1,431,944
Other equity instrument investments HitgEmTARE 1,116,348 1,092,471 913,659 3,122,478
Other current assets EiREEE - 11,243,222 - 11,243,222
Other non-current financial assets HEERsemiE - 593,499 1,056,728 1,650,227
Receivables financing RN AR E - 10,970,135 - 10,970,135
1,116,348 25,331,271 1,970,387 28,418,006
Financial liabilities held for trading RSMELEBEE - 60,254 - 60,254
Other non-current liabilities HinJEneaE - 14,035 - 14,035
- 74,289 - 74,289
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17.

DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

(1)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(continued)

31 December 2021 (Audited)

—

EERE (F)

UAREBERENEENESS (B)

—E--E+ZA=1+—H (BE:)

Fair value measurement using

DA BEFEEANSAE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ERMS EC:3) EEXN|

HE BRHAE BRGAE
F-ERX EZBX FZER G
Financial assets held for trading RHMEEBEE - 5,606,052 - 5,606,052
Other equity instrument investments HEf R TARE 1,208,800 901,649 803,387 2,913,836
Other current assets HinnsEE - 1,577,731 - 1,577,731
Other non-current financial assets HiEnaepiE 14,415 24,770 194,787 233,972
Receivables financing FEU AR E - 8,743,126 - 8,743,126
1,223,215 16,853,328 998,174 19,074,717
Other non-current liabilities HiERBa®E - 14,035 - 14,035
- 14,035 - 14,035

During the Period from January to June 2022, due
to the lifting of the six-month lock-up period, other
equity instrument investments, Shenzhen Minkave
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Minkave”), held by the Group
was transferred from Level 3 to Level 1. In addition,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements
of financial assets and financial liabilities between
Level 1 and Level 2, or no transfers into or out of
Level 3.

RIZZZF—2AHE - BAXNHE
AREER - AEEFEHHME
m THEFRE — FmERERERG
BRAG(EHIERERE=E
IKEAE—ER - BRItz EEAM
cREENMEMABEAREBEEINER
FEBAME_BRZENERE - %
BARELE-BANEN -
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17. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED) 17 AREEEE (&)
(2) Assets and liabilities disclosed at fair value (2) UAREBEEBENEENARE
30 June 2022 (Unaudited) TEZZHFXA=TH CGREE)

Fair value measurement using
AREBEFERANAAE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ERmS BEW EEART

H1E BEGHAE BEH A
E-BRX FER E=BR CEH
Long-term receivables RERYGR - 1,108,320 - 1,108,320
Other non-current liabilities HinJEnB B E - 2,998,756 - 2,998,756
Bank borrowings and bond payables  SRITEHMENES - 29,634,429 - 29,634,429
- 33,741,505 - 33,741,505
31 December 2021 (Audited) —E-—-F+ZA=+—8 (K&

Fair value measurement using
RAEEFEEANBAE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BTG 527 FERT

HRE BEHAE BRGAE
E N E_EBR EZBR Ch
Long-term receivables RE IR - 1,170,058 - 1,170,058
Other non-current liabilities HidEneam - 2,922,108 - 2,922,108
Bank borrowings and bond payables  RiTEFREMES - 33,729,304 - 33,729,304

- 37,821,470 - 37,821,470
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17.

DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

(3)

Fair value valuation

Management has assessed that the fair values
of monetary funds, trade receivables, other
receivables, bills payables, trade payables, bank
borrowings and other payables approximate to their
carrying amounts due to short term to maturities.

Management measures long-term receivables, lease
liabilities and other non-current liabilities using their
present values. The fair values approximate to their
carrying amounts.

The Group’s finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments
and reports directly to the person in charge of
accounting institution and the audit committee. At
each balance sheet date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the person in charge of accounting
institution. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined at the amount at which
the assets could be exchanged or the liabilities
settled between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm'’s length transaction, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values.

The fair values of the long-term receivables, long-
term borrowings and bond payables have been
calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using market rate of return currently
available for other financial instruments with
similar contractual terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. On 30 June 2022, the Group’s own non-
performance risk for long-term borrowings and bond
payables was assessed to be insignificant.

17~

ARBEERKE (&)

(3)

D AEEME

EERECKMETERES  BUEKR
o HEAGR - BNRE - BAER
o RITER - EMEARE - BF
HHRNR - Ao EEREREEER

++

Eo

SR RHEYNG - HERBEMEMIE
REBEE  BEEEAREFE AR
EEAKREEERS -

AEENPHHEEFEZRIAR
REEFENBERMEF Y EERA
TEERBAEANETZESR
F-BEEEREBRE  YBHMOW
ERMTRAEEZD BEGBEEMRN
IZHAE URTEGTHRBEAR
ABRHLE o BRI FEE B 5
REW BEMIAREAZESTW
EEREME

TREENERAENAAEE - K
ERFRZH  AEBRNORZET
BREETEERMREBHBENS
BT MARRAEHEHBERBR
TEEE » A TNIDEMBRRAREE

RRfEE-

REAEUGR - REIER - BREHER
AARBERETREEIETELAAE
B - LAEBUERER - EARRAM
FIpHIRMEM SR T AENTSRE
KREBFRR c _E-—F A=
B #HERBER BENEHFEES
TELHBRTEAETERK
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17. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

(3)

Fair value valuation (continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments are
based on quoted market prices. For restricted
shares and unlisted equity investments, the Group
adopts recent transaction method or the valuation
techniques to determine the fair values. Valuation
techniques include market multiples and option
pricing model, etc. The fair value measurement of
these financial instruments may involve important
unobservable inputs such as enterprise value/
revenue (“EV/Revenue”) ratio and liquidity
discount. The fair value of the financial instruments
measured in Level 3 on a recurring basis was not
significantly sensitive to a reasonable change in
these unobservable inputs. The Group believes that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique and the related changes in fair values
are reasonable, and they were the most appropriate
values at the balance sheet date.

The Group enters into derivative financial
instruments which are the foreign currency
forward contracts with banks and adopts valuation
techniques similar to forward pricing and present
The model
incorporates various market observable inputs

value methods for measurement.

including the credit quality of counterparties and
foreign exchange spot and forward rates and yield
curve. The carrying amounts of foreign currency
forward contracts are the same as their fair values.

For the wealth management products at fair value
through profit and loss, the Group will estimate
their fair values by using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the market interest rates
of instruments with similar terms and risks.

B 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-—FNRA=1+H
RMB'000 AREET T
17 2REERE (E)
3) 2AQAEEMEGE)

IS TAEKRE  UMERER
EAREE - HNREMRE - FEL™
Wik TERE - RIS A
ERAGERNKEEEAREE
HERIITBREMSRECE - BETE
BAEE - HEARBEMNFERATE
DRI ERLE - L EEE
WA (TEV/Revenue]) tb & ~ mEhlE
g - BEFZBRAABEFNE
MeEMTAHELTAERHAE
MAEIEE B EE KRN - AEEE
2 MEERMEANAREBERE
B R2AEN TANTEREESR
ERAZABENEE -

AEBMERITILTITESZRTESR
Rl RINEEHIER - KABELUNE
HATE (B oA MIRETT AN ERIMETT
e BERET ZETSTEERE
MBAE BERXSZEFNERE
£ - BVEHFIE HARE R AR K AR o S
EERHARMNREEERERAEEN
[@] o

RanBEFERLEESFT AIEEN
B EMR - AREE A GREER
BN TR Z WI5M R RAERIR
enEHEREEGEEAAEE-
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17. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

(4) Unobservable inputs

Below is the summary of significant unobservable
inputs for main fair value measurement in Level 3:

30 June 2022 (Unaudited)

17~

ARBEERKE (&)

(4) FTUBE@mAE

MTAEENE=BRAAEMBEFE
MEZ ARG AERL

ZEZZHFRAZTH GREER)

Fair value
at the end of Valuation
the Period technique Unobservable inputs  Effects on fair value
HMARAREE ‘ERN THRERAE HAABENKE
Other equity 759,705 Market Average EV/Revenue The higher the ratio, the
instrument Approach ratio higher the fair value
investments
HibEm THIEE Mi5E THEEEE /WAL LEYES - AnEEYS
Other equity 153,954 Option pricing Volatility of underlying  The higher the volatility,
instrument model asset price the lower the fair value
investments
Hitgam TAKRE HiErEEL  RNEEERHNEDE  KBHXYES AnEEY
1K
Other non-current 993,103 Investment Net value of investment The higher the net

financial assets

underlying net
value method

underlying

value, the higher the
fair value

HibsEmsemEE R ERFEE RERNHFE FEME  AnEBEES
31 December 2021 (Audited) B+ A=+—8 (KE:)
Fair value
at the end of  Valuation
the year technique Unobservable inputs Effects on fair value

FRANEBME (AERM TR BB AE HRAREBENTE
Other equity 759,705 Market Average EV/Revenue The higher the ratio, the
instrument Approach ratio higher the fair value
investments
HinEsm TARE 5% THMEEE WAL LIRS AnEBEYS
Other equity 33,257 Option pricing Volatility of underlying  The higher the volatility,
instrument model asset price the lower the fair value
investments
HibEm THRIEE HierEEL SNEEERHNEBE  KBXYEs AnEEY

{i§

Other non-current 194,787 Investment Net value of investment The higher the net

financial assets

HitERBemMEE

underlying net
value method

REBRNHEE

underlying

BRERNAFE

value, the higher the
fair value

FEMS  AREBEESS
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17. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED) 17 AAEEEE (&)
Adjustment of fair value measurement (5) AAREEFENAEAS
Below is the adjustment information of continuous SENE BRI AL BEFENAD
fair value measurement in Level 3: EEWT :
January-June 2022 ZEZZF-FRA
Assets held
at the end of
Total current the year
gains or losses Changes in
ENRERAXAR unrealised
Through gains or losses
Transfer  Through other for the Period
Opening  Transfer out of profit comprehensive Purchases/  Closing  through profit
balance tolevel3  Level3  orloss income consolidation balance or loss
HARENEE
FABENES
B\ L hr FALR BE/ LS AERNE
BIRE FZER  F=ER  iARR Galg  afA BE  JEZNEE
Other equity instrument invesiments  EAEXT RS 803,387 - (33,257) - 73,954 69,575 913,659 -
Other non-current financial assets ~ EftFFRBEBEE 194,787 - - 57495 - 804,446 1,056,728 57,495
998,174 - (33257) 57,49 73,954 874,021 1,970,387 57,495
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17.

DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

(5)

(6)

17~

ARBEERKE (&)

Adjustment of fair value measurement (5) RAEBEFENHA (F)
(continued)
31 December 2021 (Audited) —E-—-F+=-A=+—A8 (&LF:)
Assets held
at the end of
Total current the year
gains or losses Changes in
LR EbS unrealised
Through gains or losses
Transfer  Through other for the Period
Opening ~ Transfer outof  profitor comprehensive Closing  through profit
balance tolevel3  Leveld loss income  Purchases  balance or loss
EXRRNEE
SABE
EIN b AL EHRERAG
EHE EZBR EZER HAER Gala BE ERBE  SERNE
Other equity instrument investments iR TARE - - - - 615,347 188,040 803387 -
Other non-current financial assets BB HARE - 100508 - 3T - 62500 194,787 31,784
- 100,503 - 3784 615,347 250,540 998,174 31,784
Transfers among fair value hierarchies (6) RAABEREXIEER

During the Period from January to June 2022, the
fair value of other equity instrument investments
held by the Group was transferred from Level 3 to
Level 1 due to the release of lock-up period, with a
transfer amount of RMB33,257 thousand.

In 2021, there were no significant transfers between
levels of financial instruments measured at fair value
of the Group.

=

NZE-Z—F—E=AHE  ~5£E
BEEMER T AR E AR EHE
@% ﬁ AEBEERE=EREAE—
: @%27%%?%)\&%33,2573:

;um

o

ZE—FE AEBAREBEE
MeEMTAESEAZHMESEKE

%o
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EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Company convened the twenty-first meeting of the
seventh session of the Board and the ninth meeting of
the seventh session of the Supervisory Committee on 22
April 2022, and convened the 2022 first extraordinary
general meeting on 27 May 2022, at which the Resolution
on Considering the 2022 Employee Share Ownership Plan
(Draught) of BYD Company Limited and its Summary, the
Resolution on Considering the 2022 Management Measures
for the Employee Share Ownership Plan of BYD Company
Limited and other relevant resolutions were considered and
approved, and the implementation of the 2022 Employee
Share Ownership Plan by the Company (hereinafter
referred to as the “Employee Share Ownership Plan”) was
approved.

The participants of the Employee Share Ownership Plan
include employee representative supervisors, senior
management of the Company, and mid-level management
and core backbone employees of BYD Group. The total
number of participants of the Employee Share Ownership
Plan shall not exceed 12,000. The Employee Share
Ownership Plan will be transferred to the Company’s
shares to be repurchased by the Company through non-
trading transfer and other means permitted by laws and
regulations at a transfer price of RMBO per share. The
participants are not required to make capital contribution.

18~

B 75 R R B

30 June 2022
—E-FKA=1+H
RMB'000 ARKEFIT
EEBEBERAASHE
KRR ZEZ_FHA-+=-HEHTH
tF‘%%ﬁkk_+ //\ED%&%/‘:J:EF$E
FhLXREH ]EEAfgiifFﬁﬂf‘f"tEl
E%T—g:: _/AEEDH_\IH§$K%EI% ’ %
EBBRT(ENEZR <L THERHBRAR]

T FETHRE (ER) >)§Zﬁﬁx5‘]
FHE) MR EE < RERMBRA

== _¢EIHH§a‘|'¥UEf¥ﬂ#/£>E’Ua§7K>w

HEER  AEAER-ZS-_FE8IH

IR &t & (MT%M IARRBIREREEND) -

RREIFRTEL2EERBIEATNHT
REES - %%&%ﬁ/\é LA R bt 25 2 65 (3] 9
FEZEAE - ROUB®HETL 2HEAXRE
THRETEIMBAZTEB®E12,000A © &)X
%Iﬁﬁﬁriwﬂ%x‘aﬂ#i%ﬂﬁ%;‘zﬁéiﬂﬁ
REMAAZERARBEENRAAIRE %
EERABOT, R 2EHRES tljé?
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18.

19.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
(CONTINUED)

As of 13 June 2022, the Company had repurchased a
total of 5,511,024 A Shares through the special securities
account for repurchase by way of centralised bidding
transactions, accounting for 0.189% of the total share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report. The
total amount of funds for repurchase was RMB1,809,920
thousand (including transaction costs).

According to the Confirmation of Securities Transfer
Registration issued by the Shenzhen Branch of China
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited on
14 July 2022, the 5,511,024 shares of the Company held
by “BYD Company Limited Special Securities Account
for Repurchase” opened by the Company have been
transferred to the special securities account of “BYD
Company Limited - 2022 Employee Share Ownership Plan”
in the form of non-trading transfer, and the number of
shares transferred from the account represents 0.189% of
the total share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report.

The Underlying Shares held under the Employee Share
Ownership Plan will be unlocked in three phases. The
unlocking dates are 12 months, 24 months and 36 months
from the date of announcement of the last batch of
Underlying Shares being transferred to the Employee Share
Ownership Plan. The proportion of Underlying Shares
to be unlocked in each phase is 30%, 30% and 40%,
respectively. The specific unlocking ratio and number for
each tranche shall be determined based on the Company’s
performance appraisal and individual performance
appraisal results.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on 29 August 2022.

18~

19

BEEEEXRAREE(A)

BE-_T-_—_FA+=8 " QRr@BM0OE
EABFREPUEFHERINAFRRFD
BARB DS E AE5,511,0240% @ (hEE AR
REBRARBKRAN0.189% * CIIFE S 4%
BARE1809,920 T L (EXRFER) °

BEARNR-ZZE__F+AT+HAKEFE
BHRBCHEABREETARRIDARLEA
(R BPETHRRE)  ARMINT
TEBRDAERARCBERESKP | I
BH5,511,024RAFIREENIERHBF
FABPEILTERNBAERAR - T
—FEIRKFEIEARSFRSE  BFPK
NBEERERRSE B RARBREN LS
0.189% °

RREIFHRETEFANENRED = HAR
H o BERESRABRRRERE —EE
FREBFEABE THRFTE AT ZHER
12187 - 24(@ 7 - 36187 '+ SFHBEENZ
IR ZE L) 95 B A2 30% ~ 30% * 40% ° &HA
BRMmEL PIMBERE A EEZZMLE
ANEBEZERWET -

Fi MR R

FEEeEN T FNATALHE#REK
BT BB TSR -
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